VL.

Vil.

VIl

Fresno

Economic Linda Hayes Board Chair
Opportun|t|es Emilia Reyes Chief Executive Officer

Commiission

FRESNO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
SOUL GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING
SOUL- Ring Central
https:/meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1487645148
Phone (346) 980-4201
TUESDAY February 9, 2021
10:00AM - 11:30 AM

Agenda
Presenter

CALL MEETING TO ORDER Jeanne Starks
ROLL CALL Dr. Terry Allen
APPROVAL OF MINUTES Jeanne Starks
November 10, 2020

2021-2022 SAFE SCHOOL PLAN Dr. Mark Wilson
2020-2021 CSI GRANT FUNDING Dr. Mark Wilson

2020-2021 SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT CARD Dr. Mark Wilson

SOUL UPDATES Dr. Mark Wilson
a. LCAP Planning Process 2021-2022

OTHER BUSINESS
The next meeting is scheduled on March 9, 2021

PUBLIC COMMENT

Motion Page
Approve 2
Approve 4
Ratify 31
Ratify 41

Information 61

(This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Council on items
within jurisdiction but not on the agenda. Comments are limited to three minutes.)

ADJOURNMENT

communm'

R, (559) 263-1000 @) FresnoEOC.org El © W ©FresnoE0C e c ,0"

PARTNERSHIP


https://meetings.ringcentral.com/j/1487645148

FRESNO EOC SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING
GOVERNING COUNCIL MEETING
On-Line through Ring Central
Tuesday, November 10, 2020

MINUTES
Meeting called to order by Jeanne Starks at 10:04 a.m.

Roll call facilitated by Terry Allen

Voting Members

Non-Voting Staff Guests

Members

Prese
Evtus
Abse

rese

Abse

Prese
Excus
Absa

Michael Allen, Community Rep X Michelle Tutunjian

Andrea Madriguel,

Terry Allen, Ed.D., Retired Teacher Rep

=
XX Exeus

Emilia Reyes FSU Intern

Zina Brown-Jenkins, EOC Commissioner

X Sandy Lomelino,
SOUL Lead

Jeff Davis, Director Employ & Training

Independent Study

Felipe De Jesus Perez

Teacher

Corinne Florez, Community Rep

Patricia Billeadeau,

Misty Franklin, EOC Commissioner

X|X|X|x

Case Manager

Lupe Jaime-Mileham

Larry Metzler, Cultural Arts Rotary Interact Club

Mike Petrovich Ph.D, Retired Mental Health Rep

Chuck Riojas, Community Member

Jimi Rodgers, EOC Commissioner

Jeanne Starks, Chair, Retired Law Enf Juv Prob

XXX X| x| Xx

Benita Washington, FSU Social Worker Rep X

Parent Rep Maria Amaro Morales X
Alt Parent Rep:

Student Rep's (2) Rebecca Luna, Manuela Torres X X
Alternative Student Rep., Ezequel Ayala,

Rena Failla, Staff Rep

Courtney Griffin, Staff Rep

Sam Hairston, Career

Joseph Turner, Teacher Rep

Mark A Wilson, Principal

XX X|X|x

OI. Approval of Minutes

Iv.

The October 13, 2020 minutes were approved as read. M/S/C Petrovich/Metzler

2020-2021 Instructional Day Requirement

For the 2020-2021 school year in accordance with the State Department of Education the School of Unlimited Learning
local governing board must establish a day to count as a day of instruction towards meeting the annual instructional
day requirement. During 2020-2021 the School of Unlimited Learning students receive instruction through
synchronous and asynchronous distant learning with Edgenuity and traditional Independent Study.  Students
scheduled to meet through distance learning receive 240 minutes of instructional time and assignments made by a
certificated employee which meets the California Department of Education annual instructional day requirements. All
SOUL students are offered 180 days of instruction. Students receiving instruction through independent study continue
to be in compliance with the State Department of Education nonclassroom-based requirements that SOUL operated
under during FY 2019-2020. A motion was made to approve the 2020-2021 Instructional Day Requirement.  M/S/C
Allen/Rodgers



V. 2020-2021 Budget Overview for Parents
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Budget Overview for Parents is a California Legislative requirement. The
Local governing boards or governing bodies are required to adopt and submit the Budget Overview for Parents on or
before December 15, 2020. Charter schools must submit their Budget Overview for Parents along with their First Interim
report to its chartering authority and the county superintendent of schools, as required. A motion was made to approve
the 2020-2021 Budget Overview for Parents. M/S/C Brown-Jenkins/Griffin

VI. 2020-2021 Professional Development Plan
Consistent with its charter goals and identified WASC Action Plan, SOUL creates an annual professional development
plan each year. All proposed professional development activities are supported through eligible Federal Title I and
Title Il funds. This year the focus for professional development is on providing tools to help engage students in learning,
to support their social and emotional well-being and increase their motivation. Close to 90% of SOUL student body is
on campus one day a week to meet face to face with teachers and support staff. Michael Allen is training and working
with staff, students and parents, this training will provide tools to address behaviors and facilitate positive
communications. A motion was made to approve the 2020-2021 Professional Development Plan. M/S/C Metzler/Allen

VII. SOUL Update
SOUL's demographic information for the school enroliment and updates as reflected on the Principal's report were
reviewed by the council. Additional items discussed:

» Dr. Wilson introduced Rebecca Luna and Manuela Torres to the Governing Council as co Interact Presidents. A
motion was made for Rebecca and Manuela to be student representative on the Governing Council. M/S/C
Rodgers/Jaime-Mileham

» Rena Failla reported that the WASC Visiting Team has stated that SOUL will continue for the next three years.
They will be providing their written report within the next few days.

» Patricia reported that over a 1,000 items were donated from Amazon. The Culinary classroom has been
repurposed and set up as a Christmas store for students to shop for personal items or gifts for their family.

> In conjunction with the Cultural Arts Rotary of Fresno, SOUL Interact Club students are making Christmas wreaths
to deliver to the Fresno Rehabilitation Center to give to the residents,

» Dr. Wilson and Jimi Rodgers thanked SOUL teachers and support staff for the great job they are doing to support
the students through this very difficult time of distance learning.

VIIL. Other Business
The next Governing Council meeting will be held on Tuesday, December 8, 2020 from 10:00am-11:30am.

IX. Public Comment
None at this time

X. Adjournment of Meeting
A motion was made to adjourn the Governing Council meeting at 11:24 am. M/C/S Brown-Jenkins/Allen

Submitted by Terry Allen ED.,D.



Fresno
Economic Linda Hayes Board Chair

Opportunities Emilia Reyes Chief Executive Officer
Commission

SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL

Date: February 9, 2021 Program: School of Unlimited Learning

Agenda ltem #: IV Director: Mark A. Wilson. Ed.D.

Item: 2021/2022 SOUL Safe School Plan | Officer: Michelle Tutunjian

Committee: SOUL Governing Council Chief Executive Officer: Emilia Reyes
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff requests Governing Council approval of the proposed SOUL 2020/2021 Safe School
Pian.
BACKGROUND:

By March 1 of each school year, charter schools are required by their chartering agency
to submit a safe school plan for the following school year. Attached is the 2020/2021
SOUL Safe School Plan. SOUL’s Safe School Plan is developed each year using the
Fresno Unified School District template for all schools within Fresno Unified School
District.

FISCAL IMPACT

None, however, the annual development and approval of a Safe School Plan for every
school site is a requirement of the California Department of Education.

CONCLUSION

The 2021/2022 Safe School Plan must be approved and submitted to Fresno Unified
School District prior to March 1, 2021.

cammunity
L, (559) 263-1000 @D FresnoEOC.org El © W @FresnoEOC Ac '0"

PARTNERSHIP



B10°0090USBLDUOS|IM Y JRW :SSAIpPe [Ie|N-J ZSE1-006-6SG -JequinN suoydsie |

1890 OIWaPEdY JaIyD/fedioulid :uojisod

'Q’P3 ‘UOS|IM Y e :UoSiad JoBjuo)

‘Bujuies) Juspnjs 0} [e1on1o s| JuswuoliAud Buppiom pue Buiuses| ajes v :Jaljeg 8109 ASN4

2202 Ol 1202 :woid
¢¥90€01-99129-01
8po9 Sa?

Bujuses pajiwijun Jo jooyds 3y
(8822£-0822¢ UOI08S 8poY uojesnp3)
uejd |ooyas ajeg aAisuayaidwon
Jo0Y2g paljiun ousalq

sonpvi0 puay 19240 Sutivdasg

JOLIISI(] [00YOS
payIun ousaLy |

<




oLI0], B (] M2IpUY
JUIURTRUBTA] YSTY “A0JIII([ IANIIXTY

o[dwis |, uLiey]
1Y suonerddg JoIq)

d ‘P4 ‘UOS[IN "D 19q0Y
s[ooyd§ Jo jyuapudjurradng

(pammay) DINSN oue[S Ao, Jofepy
SBSOY UOSSBUOf 1oqeZI[q

"a’f ‘SIHA [01eD
SB]S] BASAOUDL)

sa1eze)) eipne[)

YI9[D ‘sewoy ], vySIoOY
JUSPISAI] preod ‘STAR(J SLId[BA
uonedInpy jo paevoyg

uejd |00YyoS ajes aAisuayasdwo)

JoLISIQ |00Y9S Pauiun ousald

Sownpoin) Apvay 4224v) Sutindsig
JOLIISI(] [00UOS

payiuf) ousoL ] |
A s

<




L

"sJapuodsal Aousbiawsa |l Jo Spasu sy} 0} pue BILIOM[ED Ul INDJ0 Jey) SIBJSesIp paueA 0} ajqeldepe pue a|qixa) g
0} paubisap st SW3S "sesuodsal uokalpsunf-hinw pue AousbBe-iinw uo uonealdnp BuLspIO B0IN0S8I 3ONPaI PUB ‘SUOKEDIUNWILIOD PUE LOKBUIPIOc Jood JO Juapioul
U} onpal [IM SIWIS JO as( "S82IN0sal pie [erinlu papasu jo uolezliqowap pue ‘Bupoel) ‘uonezipn ‘Juswihoidep ‘uoneziqot ayy srodiw [Im SIS Jo asn
'satousbe Buipuodsal |je Buowe uoyeupiooo aeoes M
‘WaSAS 8y} JO S|9AS| USSMISq PUB LIYJIM UOIRULIOM JO MOJ} B} jelijioed [
:0} papusjul si SIS ‘wa)sAs Juswabeuew Aousbiows auy) jo sjuswale Aay Burzipiepue)s Ag
‘[oA9) 81B}S 10 [euolbal ‘Baie U U0 SINJO0 JUSPIdUl UB UBYm Saoinies ajelbayul o)
pauonisod ale Joujsiq ay) pue salis [00yds yjoq ‘SIS 0} Buipioooe sueid asucdsai sisuo no Buiziuebio Ag welsAs Sy} Ul [9AS] JUSWILLSACS) [20 U) Je SUORIUN)
wes | A1ajes |00yog Jisiq sy} ‘Juswabeuew Kousbiswa pue sislo Jo [ars] asuodsay pial4 9y} Ino salued (118S) Wes | diysiopesT [00yoS SJES aYIS j00UIS 8y |

‘9)e)s pue [euobay ‘easy jeuonesado
‘JuswuIan09) [e207 ‘asuodsay pjeld :Alessasu se psjeAloe ale Yoiym ‘sjand] [euoieziuebio aay JO SiSISUOD SWIIS "BIWOHE) Ul Satousbiaws uonaipsun|
-inw pue Aousbe-ninw o} asuodsal Buibeuew 10} () 2098 8po Juswulanog Aq paiinbal walsks sy} sl (SWIS) weysAs Juswebeueyy Aousbiaws pazipJiepuels

'sndued uo aq jou Ast pjnoys sjeuss)ie ue sey uosiad yoe3 aekojduwis payisseld pue pajeayiusd ‘(sjqeaijdde 1) JeowQ uoneqold / OYS ‘8sinu |ooyos ‘lebeuew
2914J0 ‘aaublisap Jojpue [edioulld aU JO JsISu0o wes) ay| “uolidnusjul ssauisnq pue abewep Ausdoid ‘Anfui jeaiskyd Jo ysu ayy aonpas pue Ajioe} auy Jo sjuednooo
ay) Joajoud ‘Aleanoayae puodsa ‘Aousbiswa auj jo abieyd axe} 0} (11SS) wea) diysiopesT [00YaS 8jes B 9ABY [IIM SIS SAEJSIUILPE pUe Aoe; asn4 yoe3
(L18S) wee diysiepes jooyos ajes

'Y96-Cii-6GS SI BSSauUB/ Joj Jaquinu Joejuo) “wes) Ajsjes Joujsiq ay) Jo sisquiew ajendoidde ay) pate pue Ajsjeipatutwi puodsal (M SSaueA "ajqissod
se ApoInb se 8210 suoleoUNWILIY 8y} Ul JBolO uoleuLo| Jlignd JSN ‘Zeliwey essaue Joejucd o) AousBiaws ue Buunp aajelsdu sI ) ‘116 Buoejuod Jayy
joeju0) Aouabiswy Aoy

‘Ajfioey jooyos asn4
e Buinoaur juspioul AousBiaws ue Buunp pasn aq leys Ueld j004oS ajes sAIsuayaIdwo?) [00YdS ay) Yum Buoje 4xig ay] “seniiqisuodsal juswabeuew Aousbiows

8ABY oum Jiels pue Ajnoey ‘sedioutid o} uonoalip pue souepinG sapiroid (dSSO) Ueld 00yoS 8jes ansuayaidwog (GSNd) 10UISig |00Y9S PaluN ousal4 ay|
adoag pue asoding

1 C0¢ YoteN

ZOAR()) PUBWITY
asuodsayf sisu)/Suraueld L>uddsomy ] JoSeuepy JoLYsIq




6'Gv1S ‘L€1G Aalod preog 89S — Buipodey swu ajey (9

9€1S ‘71§ ‘1€1G Aolod preog seg —epog ssaig (G

L'SPLS LL'BLEY LL'BL2Y ‘L1 6L LY Aoliod pleog 89S — juslisselel [enxeg / uojeuiwosiq (v

8SEY '8GCy ‘851 Adllod pIeog 9eS - sfidng snosabue( jo uoheoyloN jeyoeal (g

VYPLG ‘YrLG TIS L€1S ‘TLELS 'LELS Aolod pIeog 995 - (G'L6ZSE 9POD P ‘L6ZSE 8POD ‘P ‘@S.68Y 90D P3) sdais Aeuydiosig  (z

7' 171G Aoljod preog eag - asnqy piyy (1

"sajousbe Ao yum Apusioiye

810W XI0M 0} 3|qe 3 |iM SI8Ydes} pue SiojeljsiulLpe Joj $8j0l paubisse LM j00Yds e ‘siy) Jo asnedag “sjuana Aousbiswa sbeuew o} SIS aY) s sispuodsal
Rouabisws Ay "a|qe|iere jou ale sajews)e/sIequiaL LIEs) IOl JO SUO Ji JSPUBWILIOD JUBPIOU] SU) JSISSE OSe [jIM JUSWNIOP SIU} Ul SAOGE SUIRNO Sanijiqisuodsay
R $9|0Y 8y "siequaw wes] diysiapes |00ydg ajes ay) Aq poojsiepun pue paubisse ale sapijiqisuodsal pue ssjos SIS Jey) suonesado Aousbiows o
sAljeladuwl 13| s1n200 Aouabliawa ue usym ssejo e paubisse Jou S1ayoea) [|Im se ‘SUOROUN OLIDadS BABY 1M SSEIO Ul SJUSpNIS Y)im Sioyoes | “AousBiawa ue Buunp
suonouny o}y1oads Jiay) Mouy pinoys siaquisus Aynoey |0oyos |fe ‘LSS BuY JO SIaquisw AU} 10} S8{0s SaLRUBPI SIS S SIIYM “Buipiing au jo 1no alem Jebeuew
Aewiud ayj §1 ¥se} auo uey) alow Joy sjqisuodsal aq o} Slenpinpul SLLos alinbai Aew sfy| “abe1en0o ainsse 0} 8|01 yoes Joj sjews)e ue ubisse skeme ‘SIS

8y} U1 sajol [BDNLID Jo Jusabeuew sy} Buiubisse usyp “Aousbisws ue Buunp Bulpjing sy ul aq |m oym Ajoexs Jo Aulepeoun ay) ssalppe os[e ued SIS aY|

"BaJE JBY/SIY JO Juswabeuew
au ul azifeioads o} Ajuniioddo ay) yim Jaquiaw Yoes sapiacid wea] j00yoS ajes sy} Jo siequiaui o} Ayiqisuodsal Jo sesle oyads Bujubisse Apusueuad

"SOBYD pUB UOISNJUOO JO JUNOLUE 8Y) 89npal [[IM Jey) S|duuByd UOREDILUNLULIOD Jes[o Sajeald

Juapioul [eanLa e Buninp wisyshs [euoneziuebio siy Buisn ‘suoisiosp pauojui Buryew i way) jsisse pue (ediould) JapUBLILIOS JuSpIoUl ay) 0} uoijeuiojul spiaoid
uoy) sisbeuews asal | juspioul 8y} Jo sjoadse omj Jo 3uo 1snf uo snooj o} Jabeuew yoea smojie uonebajep Jo adA) sily| “Yse} 8y} jo Jebeuew ay) se seAlss pue
paubisse yse) auj 10} a|qisuodsal UL s) Jequisl | 1SS oYL "sjuspioul [BRUO Sjpuey AJnyssaaons o) | 1SS 8y} JO Siequisll o} pajebajep ale syse} ‘SIS ay Jepun
'S|SAS) |[e Je Swes 3y} ulews: SUOROUNY J8Yl0 By} JO SOl aY | "asuodssy pjal 1dsoxe s|eAg

I[E J& puBWIWOD JO peajsul pasn S| jJusiuabeuew wis) 8y “uolensIUiLpPY/aoUBULY pue ‘sopsiBo ‘eouabijsiuy/Buluued ‘suojeladQ ‘puewwo? :suogoun;
SOI Arewiid aAl ay} sesn asuodsey pjol4 8y L *(SO|) WalSAS pueLILLOY JUSpIou| Woly pajdepe SUoloun; [euasse Al sey SINTS isuofjound juswabeuely [enusssy




a)is anok je Ayjiqisuodsal jo sease jJuanind Jaajyel o) ueld ay) jo sejejdwa) sy} ajepdn 9

seak jooyds ey Bupinp sswi) oM - j11Q UONEIYUNSY ZZ0Z-LZ07
(looyas yBiy ay} e sawiy omj pue [2A3] |00Y9s a|ppiw pue Aiejuawaje ey je Japenb e a9uo JOA0Y pue ¥ong) jug syenbypes zzoz-120Z
(awy [euonon)sul pue swiy Younj ‘j0oyYds Jaye 00Ys a10jaq) - “sapenb Jad auQ ‘reak jooyss sad sawly 04 ~ [P UMOPYI0T ZZ0Z-1Z0Z

ueyd juawhojdep yeys jo ANiqisiA
9ai] suoyd [ooyss

SN NS

(swn euonannsul 'yaun| ‘looyds 1eyejai08eq)

"Jooyos Y6y ay3 Je Jeak Jad sawi) a1y} pue [aAs] [00YIS SjppIW pue Asejuawa|d ey je yyuow sod 83uQ - 8iNPaYSS [1UQ ol ZZ0Z-LZ0Z A

:ysliqejs3

*(ueyd pue ayis jo dew) uonenoeas sndwes yo z abeg

B0’ paljiunousal)@zeyo) Alobals)

Je zapo9 Aiobaig Ajou eses|d ‘dew uoyyenaeas JnoA Jsnipe o pasu noA i “asueusyurely Aq pedojeasp aie sdew uoenoeag ag | abejg

iem fajeg jooyag ajejdwo)

‘uoedyjunal Juasedpuapnis Joj paysi|qejss uoieso| sndwed Uo pue wea) uoHeIYIUNS YIM Ue|d Juswabeueyy ezusnju| lwapued

suopoalig

\

siapuodsay piy isily 4

wea| ssouj|ap JUspnig/ues] JusSsassy jealy] 4
Nlem Kojes 4

wes) diysiopea jooysg ajeg 4

:ysijqess3

‘T




0l

0860-00S-655 ouljowo" eipues 19Ydea] pea
1860-00S-6SS Jauin] ydesor Jayoea] pea Y0
¥160-00S-6SS a'P3 “UOS)IM 'V el sjeuially Z

00€1-€92-6SS 049-zanbupoy wir ARy '}

00€1L-£92-6GS >o_.~=_0_._ B329qQ3Yy 19940 @3ueul] dueulj/uonedisiuiupy
1960-00S-6SS ejjie4 euay ojeusdly 'z

LY60-005-6SS Japeaym ufjuep sjeusd)ly '}

¥160-005-6SS "a’P3 ‘UOS|IM 'V HEeN 10JUIPI00) Jueld soysiboT |
1960-00S-6SS ejjieq euay sjewd)ly 'z

#560-005-6SS uyuo Asunon ajeusajy ‘|

¥160-00S-6SS "a'P3 ‘UOS|IM 'V ¥el [edidung suopesadQ
956.-111-6SS neapeoj|ig eIduUjed sjewdlly g

996.-111-6SS ZopueusoH uesng ajeusdlly '}

L¥60-00S-6SS 1919ay uhjuep Jabeue 200 aouabljjsjui/butuueld
1960-005-6SS ejjieq euay ajewsdy °z

$S60-00S-6SS uigIe) Asupno) dlewsyly |

¥160-00S-6SS a’P3 ‘UOS|IM 'V Yiel lediduug PUBWIIOY JuapIou|

auoyd oweN

wea] diysiapea |ooyss sjes

"Mojeq pajsl] sl wes| diysiepes [00yas ajes ‘Juapuajuuadng [euononiysul ayy o3 sbuipuly podai () pue

‘suonenyis Ainfuj ssesse (g) ‘oBewep Joj ¥29yo (g) ‘ease ayy ainaas (}) :Bumojjo) ay} ajey|ioe} o} ale abieys uj saubisap Jojpue [ediound ay] Aouabiowa
ay) Bupnp suopoaup apiroid pue 89si9A0 0} Uoed0] pajeubisap e 0 odal pjnoys wea | diysiapesT |0oydg ajes oy} ‘Aousbiatwe ue Jo JusAa ayj u|

)9 $19211J0 suofjesadQ pue Japuewwod Juapioul Yyjoq se aasas Kew jedidung

oy} ‘ojdwexa Jo4 "sajos ajdnnw sases Aew sioquisw wes) ‘ajqejieae yejs uo Buipuadaq ‘(SWIN) wajsAg juswabeueyy Juspiou) jeuoneN ay) pue (SW3S)
wajsAg juswebeueyy Aouabiow3 pszipiepue)s 1oujsiq ays yum ubije o} pazjuebio usaq aaey suonouny wea) diysiapesT |00YIS ajes AL} ey} jou ases|d

wea] diysiapest jooyos ajes

189k |00y s 3y} jo | YIIB uey Joje} ou paniwqns aq jsnwi suejd pajejdwios * Bio paniunousaljpizaAey) puelily

‘Z8Aey) pueunly pue ad0 Aojes Jo Aiejaioseg’ BIo paljiuNoUSaIjD|[oMas BIE) 0} UBjd |00Ydg ajeg aAIsuayaidwo?) 1ok Ajjesiuos3oae yugng ‘g

‘ue|d anoidde pue

ssnasip 0} Aieniqa Jo Asenuep u) Bunsaw e sepuajes aseald ('}, Yaiely 0) Joud aq jsni jeacsdde Joj Bunsstu 0SS) ‘juswdojonap syl ul paAjoAul
aq jsnw pue ueid jeuyj sy} Bulrosdde jo Apiqisuodsal ayj sey [19unod ajis [0OYIS BY) JaqUIBWY [1DUNOI 3YIS [00YIS Y} UM Ajaso|d YoM 2




VN
VN

L xxx

X X X X X X X X X x X

x

IT

95e3 paydo| e ul padejd pue pa.nd3s syoes ajig

sojoyiod wou) 394} d4e sp|oi4

spdezey Suiddii) pue s)oeld Wodj 931} S}|emapis

3uipjing 3y} jo "Ys ulyum suoz Supled oN

U|-|joMm 3.e s)o] Sunjied

pa1ndas aJe sued a8eqsed pue siajsdwng

1Y31u 3e pajeuiwni|l )3 paJnaas aie Suip|ing |EUIBIXD 1R SSIH|IdE} DYV

juawdinba mojaq punoJs ayj uo pade(d |eridlew uondaloid-jje) pue ajes Jusawdinba punoisie|d
(ease pjay a°1 ) sioopino pasn aq 01 ANjige ay) sey pue JapJo Supjiom poos ul walsAs vd
a|qedijdde asaym Jopio SupjJom poos ui sesdwed AHaInIas J01431X3

*219 ‘s9aJ] ‘odeaspue| wiou) 3upjoojq Ou ‘M3IA B3| dARY SeJawed ANIndas Jo1I91X]

sinoy 1y3iu Bupnp asn jo seaue [je ajeuwny)i Suiysi JoopnQ

3pIsul WoJy 3|qexI0| pue J3pIo SUjJOM Ul SMOPUIM pue s100Q

pawuwil sqniys

pPa%20] pue paindas saydiey Jooy

pa%20| pue paindas Saly|IIN [euJdIX]

131)4e43 Jo 2344

uonysod ut sudis auoz jooyds ajeudoiddy

seale Ua)oiq ou pue 3|qejls - Sadud4

3|qexd0]| - sajeo

ssazoud
ul 43piQ-r

uopuany
SpaaN

1apio
ut ' pay23y)

buipjing jooyss fo 1011933

*I9)SAUISS PUOISS SY) FULMP SOUO PUR T8I [0OYIS ST} JO LIB)S 9} J& 90U()

"Tedk © 351M) UOP 2q PINOYS B AI9JeS,, SY [ U A19JeS MoK Jo JustwdojoAdp Sy} Ur [B)IA ST
UONBULIOTUT STY T, ** "0} WSAS Y ‘S9INO0I UOTIBNILAD “SS9008 AOUZISUID ‘SUOTIIPUOD KJ3Jes SSISSe
0} duop

3q Isnur IS o4 Jo e A195eS,, 93 ‘ures ], diysiopes] [00yos ofes oA Jurysiqelss oy

ATVM AL34VS TOOHOIS




4!

43410

X S| pie 3sai4

X su8is uoine)

X Bupjied Joj souo)

X sugdis psen3 3uissol)

X soipey

Aubw moy paaN ybnoua anoy spaaN juawdinby

VN pajjeisul aJe sajoydaad

X apISul BY3 WOUJ 3|qe)I0] d4e SMOpUIM pue s10oQd

X J9x1s # auoyd Aduadiswse ay) sey auoyd woousse|)

X paisod s| dew uotjendeny

X 3|qissadoe Ajisea s 1op|oj Aduasiawg

X paisod s) apind Aduadisws woousse|)

ssazoud uonuany Japio woousso)
ut 13pi0-r SpasN ul ® payI3y)

VN (Z1-£ sopei8) sa8peq | pansst aJe Juapnis

X so8peq (| Jeam yeis

X 10943 U s |[030304d ssed JOUSIA

X ("032 sAe|dsip 1 384e| ‘SpUsWINIISUL JISNW ‘@iN1IUINY) SUOIIONIISCO WOLY 3344 31 SAem||eH

X paiejiluaA Ajpiendoidde pue pasndas swood 1aAIas/isndwo)

X wood A1aAs ul pajsod si Jaquinu s,uollels SulJOUOA [eJua) 3y

X sAem|ey ul pue Joop ay} Jeau wood AI3A3 Uy pasod si aSeusis UoIENIEAS |BSIBAIUN

% JapJo 3upjiom ui sy} ux3

X 9pIsSul WoJj 3|qexd0| pue 13pJo SUINIOM U] 31 SMOPUIM pUe S100(

jooyas fo io1a3uf

ssazo.d uonuany Japio

ut 1apio-r SpaaN ul e paxaayd

VN UOIYPUOD SUJOM Ul pue 3)es aJe siaydes|q wAo




€1
(es1an esin pue wes) diysiopes] 00y0S SjeS By} O} BJEDIUNWWIOD (jIM SIBYIES) MOH) UB|d UCBIIUNWWOY D

"(4S9p ,$18Y9E8} 10 JIX8 WOOISSEJD ) 0} IXaU 8 0} Juaade|d PapusLULIOIsY "SWOOISSEO |fe Ul
S}iS pJepue)s e ul 8q jsni s300q [jos J1ay} Yim Buofe Aied ||im siayoes) jey) sexoq Jo siapulq *,sBeq 0B, ‘sapinb pajeuiwe)) sjeusiew uojenJeAs Woossse)) O

(Aep Jooyos sy} noybinouy} sjuspnys asay} Jo Uoeso) isi| Aujiqow palledw) ©
swiJoj Jo Boj 1no ubis uejpiengjusied ©
(eate ases|al juapnys o} usye} aq o} Apeas skem|y) spied Aousbiowg ©

Wwes| ases|oy Juspn)s ©
wes| asuodsey sisu) o©
swes] o
Balessald ©
Bale 9ses|oy juspnis
(sojne pue sassnq yjoq Joy) sjuiod uonepodsues |
uoisinedns jo sealy
SSe|0 pue Iayoes) Yoea 1o} seale pajeubise(
S9Jnol UOKleNJeAg ©
:Moys Jey} swesbeip sndweo pajejoq o
JSIpjosy) ue|d uonendeas

O 0O OO

S9Ny uoljenoeny om| abejs pue auQ abejg ay) jo dew e apnu;
"ype3 9|60og uo pajesio aq ued pue djysiepesT |00yaS afes sy} Aq pajesio o [|eys SUB|d UolenoeAT om | abe)s ‘sueld AsY| aig
1apun ‘abed juiodaieys suoljesadQ pue soueusjulely Jo Juswiiedaq oy} woy paulelqo sdew ,ue|d A8y, JuaLno 8y} Uo Paseq aq [|eys SUE|d Uojendeg auQ ebeyg

(‘Yeioute usiiey ‘Nes| seb :sejdwex3) Jusuiiedaq ali4 pue aoljo4 ‘Juswipedaq uogepiodsue) | Uim 8jeuipioor)
"JuaAs JO aw} Je sndwied Jo UOedo| pauILLISP B O} Pajeds]al 81 jjels PUB SJUSPN]S |8 ‘JapUBWILIO?) JUapIou| Jou}sIQ 8y} Jo uonoalip sy }y “UOIIEIO|SY OM] abejs

'Snduleo uo Lojeso] ajes  Je pauoliels pue sBupjing WoJy pajendens aie yejs pue sjuspnys ||y :UORENIEAT SUQ) SDEIS
:sabe}s om} §0 sisisuco Jeys uejd uopendeAs e aAeY JSnU )Is Yoeg

Sueld uonendeAd (sndweg yo) om) abeyg / (sndwes ug) sug abejg




14!

sjamod Jo sjebajeq / apod p3

12.£6 VO ‘ousald
]S o1opesiAg G1G1
punoibhe|d Aexoiq

‘wC}- w6 SjUSPNYS pue Jels ||y

a)IS elewlal]y Alepuooss

160-005-69G :dUoUd '('P3 ‘UOSIIM Y YHB :U0SIad Joeju0D

12/€6 ousal4 ‘selanele] 9¢eZ — 3LIS

"SUOIONIISU} 10} Jiem pue 8)is BuIMO|(o) By} 0) [BAEI} [|IM JElS/SIUSPN]S Jfe ‘UojendeAT sndwen-LO ‘uoliendeas Z abejs e Jo 8sed ay) U

(sndwe9 yo) uonenoeay z abeg




Sl

sIomod Jo aeSate( £ 9poD pH
oouB1sa( s JeduLld 07T dd

ouljawo] Apues {edidpuud ay Aq pauluie}ep Kieyaions edioutig 1919dyp UAjEBlN
Jels JaUI0 JO JSYIOM [B100S |00YdS

Shod I yers Aunoag JUBWS0I0JUT MeT uyug Asupnod
JUSWISSaSSY Jealy ) Ul paulel|

uus) Asupnoy | Jojasunoy) ‘Jojesunod) (dys) ‘sjuelsissy IBUOISSB0d [EH [ENBIY ejjleq euay
Juapnig Jo Jsibojoydhsd j0oyos

gaubisa( —— .
Eiied eusy Jo [ediduid Juelsissy ‘lediould Jojesiuiwpy @'P3 UOSIM 'V HEW
J1IVNYALTY JLVNYALTY EQatik LECIEVEELARY

"|o0yos 0} pauinjai Ji pue uaym Buiaq jjem sjuspn)s ay} Jojuow o) palinbas aq Aew asjo JOASOYM IO
sjuased ‘Yejs Jaujo apnjou; o} juiod Jeuy je puedxe Aew wes) sy "Wes | SSIU|IB JUSPMIS E SBW099q Wes) siy) ‘ssa001d [eLajal 0515 ASNL oY ul pabebus usyp

‘passed sey

SISO 8} Jaye 1n9d0 0} paau Aew Jey) saoiaies Jo Buojiuow Joj ueid pue sfeusjel OGS ‘slealy) 0} asuodsal S, 8IS [00YIS 8U} JUSWNOOP PUB SISISAO ||IM WES) 3y |

'0G1S 8p0D SUORINU| pue aiejjap Jopun s[eliajal Buiiew uaym seiouabe apisjno yjm YoM pINoys Wee) sty |

"papaau aq Aews asuodsal Jeym

Pue pauinbal aq Aeuw $801n0sa1 JOLISIP JRUM ‘Sjeriul (M S)iS [00yOS au) asuodsal JO [aAS] JeyM aulULIB)ap ‘pasod Jeall) JO [8AS] AU SSSSSE ) S| N1 SU) JO Yse} 8y |

(LNVL) wes]

Jususebeuel JuaLSSassYy Jealy | 1o} BUSAUOD [[iM [00YIS BU) ‘SIaUJ0 J0 SaAjasWaY) 0} uuey [eualod esod Aew Jey} dnolb o [ENPIAIPUI UE SSYUSPI [00YIS B USUA

(wea] ssaujjopm Juspnig)

(LAWVL) Wv3L INFW3IOVYNYIN LNIWSSISSY LVIN¥HL
Jousiq [00Y9g pakjun ousaly




91

$)99y9 ddueuBjuIR (JojelLqYSQ [EWRIXT pajewolny) gIV

Z6€1-006 (65S) 3d1J0 utey IN0S Jaquin uiel IN0S
30O Jesysibay 996/-/2/ (6SS) leyisibay ZepueuIeH UBSNS | zz | X | X
uondaday Juoid4 :9/60-0/G (6SS) Jsiuofjdedsy ZanbLpoy BUOID) | 7z [ X | X
100} s @O Jobeuep ase) :966/-14/ (655) lsbeuepy ase) nNeapes|lig Blouled | zze | X | X
¢ Wooy :1,005-005 (6SS) Jayoea| OP3OY XY | zz50 | X | X
Joleay) 6¢15-222 (6SS) Jayoea] epueg SAPE|9) | zzg [ X | X
Jsjeay :1806-//2 (6SS) Jayoea] Z)U00Y UYOP | zzig0 | X | X
€ Wooy :/G0G-00S (6SS) layoes] uospaA AUle | zag | X | X
100} pug 99IYQ Jabeuep ase) :61/6-2/7 (65S) lobeuey asen buep Buop | zzeo [ X | X
b Wooy :9/05-005 (55S) Iayoest 8do7 UBSNS | gz | X | X
Jsyeay] :0860-00< (6SS) Jayoea) ouljewoT Apues | zze0 [ X | X
| Wooy :/406-00S (6SS) Jayoea} nUe 19BYIN | zzgo [ X | X
€ Wooy :940S-00S (6SS) Jayoea) Boeg SINT | zz0 | X | X
¥ Wooy :680G-005 (6SS) Jayoes] JUBS UOUUBYS | 7190 | X | X
¢ Wooy :1860-005 (65S) Jayoea} Jouin} ydosor | zg [ X [ X
a0YQ Jebeue ased :£6G5-//.(6SS) lobeuejy ase9 SHOd NI | zzgo | X | X
90O Jojasuno)) Jease) :£46/-7// (6SS) Jojasuno) aoueping) Jaale?) UOISHBH WS | 7700 | X | X
| Wooy :/605-00S (6SS) Iayoea| ZonbseA BULBY | zzg9 [ X [ X
80llJO JuejsisSy aAelsIUILPY :/#60-00G (6SS) Jabeuey 800 Jojoaym UAIUBIN | zzg | X | X
S0lj0 Iojasunoy soueping :y560-00 (655) Uesq aoueping U ASUHNOY | zze0 [ X | 1
0O J0jasunog peaH :,960-006 (6SS) 10jeulpI00Y J0j3SUNCY BOUEBPING BllB4 BUBY | 7z | X | X
800 s,lediould '4160-005) (655 lediouud d'P3 'UOS|IM 'V BN | zzeo | X | X
Tiz|g
auoyd ooy T JWYN 7 1°
‘Jooyos 18 JeaA |00yds ZzZ0Z-1Z0Z a4} 10} Siapuodsal pie jsii Aousbiawe pajeubisap ale siaquiaw Jje)s bumoyjor ay

‘Wes} asuodsal SISLIO sy}

0} Uopippe Ul ple ysuy ul paures sidoad Jo Jaquinu sjenbape ue ale alay} Jey) ainsu3 “eouejsisse apinoid Aew Jaquaw yes Aue ‘kouabiaws ue uj ‘GIV-PIV 1S113-440 Ul Bujuien
JUBLIND SAB OUM SISGUISLI JJe}s 850U} AJRUspl "AJ[ENUUY "Papaau Uaym aouejsisse apiaaid o} Jsily aJe oym Siapuodsal piy jsii pajeubisap aAey Jsnw ayis JoUjsIp Yoeg

SY3ANO4SIY aiv 1Suid




Ll

‘fonod
Jolsiq [ensn Jad se paja|diuod aq 0} ase spoda Jusplode sakojduis Aouabiawe ay) Jojpue Juspnys ajeudoidde auy ‘eAngiyoid ) asuodsal pre Jsy/sisuo ay) Jo adoas ay ssajun

"90U0 Y)jeay sy uf yuswdinba pre jsil yyum palols aq [leys Juswdinbe yong “pasn
8q [[eys S8IASp UOHE|USA JOLRO Jo ‘sysew Jaxood ‘spiaiys ‘sedaldignow ‘uone)asnsal ypnow-oj-yinow Asuabiewa Buunp UoISSIWISURL SSESSIP SNORSSJUI JO YSU ) SZIWIUIW O]

SNOILNVI3d ¥dO

"Juapioul uonesuaduwion s JoyIopm
& se papodal aq jeys ) ‘Juspioul ainsodxe poojq ajqissod e ul panjoAul si sakojdws e awip Auy “susBoujed auI0q poojq 10} SUOINE3I [ESIAMUN SUIEILOD Uy SaulapInb ay]

'sasse[o doys Ul aq
osfe Aew pue ‘WAB s 16 ‘wAB s Aoq auy ul pajeso) ate sjooyds ybiy auy e (sBeq pie 15|, pal) salddns [euonippy “souo ylesy ay Ut pajeao] ase sanddns pie Jsiy pue saulspInG ay |

‘pte 3s1y Buipiaoid o} apinb ay) s Sjooyog elWIoie) 10§ SaUBPING PIY )si1d Aouablawg

¥ pue ¢ swooy ¢p0/-/2/ (8SS) 10|asunoy) 1asie) UOJSJIeH Wwes

Z pue | swooy 61/6-7// (6SS) Jabeuey asen buep buopy

Wooy 99y pue Jajeayl £665-2// (6SS) IoBeue}y ase) SHOd [9BYIAN
Wooy/auoyd AL aWwep

‘Bupuodsai 8s0Y} 104 SISSEID JAA0S 0} B|qIsuOdSal aq [jIM Yels BuIMo||0} SY) ‘PAJEARIE ale siapuodsay ply Jsii{ 8Y) ases aup uj
(suspnis 104 ajqisuodsal asoy) Joj) abesano) siapuodsasy piy 1sii4
™08y soueuajurew g3y Ajyjuow au Joj sjqisuodsal aq |[im oym (s)uosiad ey Jsi| ases)d




81

lew3 Ag :sjews)y
auoyd Ag :aewsyy
uosiad u| :Aewud

"SISLID B JO 9SO By} Ul Jjels nok ypm Buiieojunwiwos o sepow 8y 1S

UOREDIUNWWOY

"301J0 SJ0JeUIpI00?)

fisjes ey ul Jo seale doys o WAB sy ul Beq puoaas ay) a10)s pinoys sjooyds ybiy) soi4o Yjeay sy Ut pajedo ale sbeg Aouabiewz ay) pue ,s|00y9S BILIOjEN
1o} sauljaping piy Jsui4 Aousbisws, 8y | “sbeq omy saey sjooyos ybiH "saiddns pie Jsiy ym paxoojs (Ajuo Jsjsesip Joj) Beg piy 1sii4 Aousbiaw3 ue sey jooyss yoeJ

"JOJeulpI000 AJojes [00UDS Bu} UM SE |jom Se a01jjo s,asinu uf jday aq isnw AioBajes ay) uj sjuspnjs |je Jo 1sI| fenuspiuoo e,

0860-006 {655) Jayoes| oulawo Apueg
1460006 (655) Aiejenes [ediound Jajeaym ukjuep
1960-005 (65G) 10jasuno) souepingy gjjled eusy

INOHd

LI

JNVN

'100yds ybiH sepeyQ Buurea pajiiun Jo [00YoS Je Jeak [00Yds ZZ0Z-120Z ou 10} Siepuodsay aie)) slelpaww| pajeubissp ale siaquiaw yejs Buimoloy ay |

'SUOIIPUOD U)jeay Juesyiubis yum sjuapn)s

10} 819 feoipaw apiroid pue Joyuow o} Jeak Aiea jsuuosied pajeubisep Buiuies) Joj ajqisuodsal 8q 0} BSINN "aLUK JO JUNOWE JUBDLIUBIS € JO} [O0US Je UleWa)
Ky i sjuapnis asau) Jo spasu [eaipaw ay} 10j apiroid o} paau jjm LS *(aje Buipssy | ‘suoljezualoyies se yons ‘sainpaooid aleay)esy pazieioads pue ‘sainzies
'Sejaqelp ‘euwlyse a18s ‘saifiioj|e a19nas) SUONPUOD YiEY JuedYUBIS Uym SjusPN}S Joj led fedipaw Buipiroid pue Buuoyuow ul paules) ale oym suosiad jle Anusp

SHIANOLSIY F4VO ALVIAIWNI




61

"3sBISIP UBWINY JO YSII [enuelsqns sasod adAiqns
STUIA BZUIN[JUI [ewlue SUfR[NoI0 B ‘IOASMO}] SUBWINY
Ul pa30919p sadA1qns SnIIA BZUSN[JUL MOU ON — 7 aSDYJ

"S.IMoo0 )1 J1 A[prdel wolssrusuer)
"paambau se A[pidel yons uodal pue 39918p ‘susunyg
uodai pue saujeping Surpodal pue UOII09)SP puUE)SISPUN SISQUISW 01 UOISSIUISUEI} JO YSLI o) SZIWIULIA]

B1S JRY) 2INSUS (SURUINY 0} GOISSTUISURH JO YSLI Oy} SZIWIIUI
Hes eyq) Y O} UOISST 41 JO YSLI 9y} SZIUIUA - MO[ PRIOPISUOD

ST 3SBASIP 1O UOIIISJUT UBTINTY JO YSLI oY) ‘S[BUIIUL UI

‘suonned’sad [esIaArun "BJEP OUB[[[OAINS [BUIIUE PUE UBUINY yuasa1d J] “s[ewiue uf jusseid aq Kew uonoay E uetny
pue ay3anbna Arojeaidsal se yons saansesw aapeuasald | sojuow K[3so[) S[9Ad] [k Je ssauparedaid pasned sy jey 2d£1qns SIIIA eZUSNIUI UY “SUeuImy
Ul pauier) e S)uapn)s pue sIdqUII J3e)s jeq) dInsuy ostwapued ezuonpyur uapSuang | W POIRIOP s2dqns STIIA BZUSNUT MO ON ~ 7 2SDYd
pousq srwapuediojuy

S[805) JOLI)SI(] [00YIS PIYIU() OUSIL] s[eon Yy ANqng saseyJ dSrmapueg

“Juawsdwt pInoys pIom Y} punoie

SSMIUNOD Jety) SUONOE SPUSWTHOIDL PUB e] [[IM OHAL SeInseaus asuodsax soyynuapt ueld sssuparedard ezuongyur [eqo[8 oy ‘oseyd yoes 10 "priom
3y} punore suonIpuod sruspued yim puodsariod o) [aas] aseyd ay3 sisnipe pue sseyd orwspued [qo[S JUSLMD SY) SAIB[I3P A[EULO] OH A JO [BIOUSD)
10303111 S "onwapued e 0] pes] Aeul yey) 2dAiqns SNIIA BZUSIFUL M3U B JO pealds pue s0usFIowWs 9y} YIm PIIRIOOSSE YSU yieay orqnd Surseaour
3o soseyd x1s Jo pasuduwios st waysAs uoneOISSE]d ST, “orwapued eZUSN[JuT Ue 10§ SANIANSE ssuodsal pue Suruueld Surpms 10§ wd)sAs UOTJBOIJISSB[O
& sopnyout jey ueld sssuparedard ezusnjyut [eqoj3 & padoeAsp SeYy ‘SUONEN PAIIU[) 9y} JO ULE [edIpaw ) (OHA) UONLZIueSI() |[esH PHOM 9L

IINAANYVd V 40 SASVHd
"K101m3ud s)1 ur pajuows[duir
9q 1SN JUSWNDOP UB[ JUSTIBLURT BZUSN[JU] STWSPUEd (JS(1d S} YUSWeSeuew AOusFIow 9A103]J9 PUB JUSIOIJS 0mMSUS 0] ‘sjuauodios 12130
pue Ue[d [00YdG 3jeS SAISUYaIdWO) (IS Y} JUSWSNE 0 SIATOS BI0JAISY) PUB SIXSUUY JUSPIOU] [EISAIS JO SUO ST UB[{ JUSWaSeUR BZUSN[JU]
OIWOpUEd SY], "SIXQUUY JUSPIOU] pue ‘saxsutry Moddng ‘suonoung poddng Lousdiowy ‘soxipusddy ‘ueld [0oyos aJes aarsuayarduo)) PpSIg
[00Y9S P3YIU[) OUSIL] Ay} FuIpnjoul sJusUOdUIOd [EISAIS JO SISISUOD UR[ JUSWISTEUBIA BZUSN[JU] STWSPUE OIS [00YDS PIYIU) OUSAI] Y],

ue[q JUIWASCUBIA] BZUAN[JU] JWIPUBJ
PLOSK [00YdS PaRIU) ousdag




0T

dodojdwa onyqgnd 7, :Sa)s yorym (ZIzt YV 001€ 9POD IUdUULIAOD) UD]] SSIUPaDAda SIdISDSI(] PUD SIIOUISLIUT Y] APUN SIIYAOM 2I1ALDS
ouaB.ioua aui022q saad0)duad U2admMOf] “3uiaqiram juspnis so juvriodur sv s s2240)dwd 11LYSIP [0 fo 24vfjam ayg “sis1ao/ousSioWd UD Sutincy

SINI0AN J9)sesi(] Aduagrawy se sadkojdwy srpqng

*SJUAPNYS PaJodJe PuR [[I 10J UOTIRONPS pue poddns WNWITXEW JINSUg

‘SaInseal Qﬁﬁﬁmh.m—‘:u
PUE ‘TONR[OS] ‘UIURISIP [2[00S ‘SHATOO PUe OH'T MO[[04

‘SUOIOUNJ [0OYDS PUE SSSUISN] [BIIUSSSD

10J Surjyess ayenbape ainsus 03 sampasold sanensiuIIpe juswaydun
)} suLjy P p I Hup Jaun
puB 90UBPUSNE PUE [}{ESY JUIPNIS/FIRIS JO SOUB[[IOAIMS SSBIIIU]

‘syoeduar
srwspued szpwrurur 0} SUIDURISIP [RI0S
Surpnjowr saanseaw asuodsal Juswordury

‘uone[ndod [e1ouas oY) U UOISSITISURL) PAUIE)STIS
puE paseaIou] "pale[dap SI oTwIapued — 9 sy

pold drwapued

"AJaJes pue [i1esy 0 pajefar sjusled M SUOHEOIUNUIIOD SZIWIXEIA
“Iepuajes AJALOR

[ooyods a1 Suronpas Furpniour ‘ssurfaping QN1 1od sanbruyod)
Burouessip [e190s 103 donoeid 3seq Sunustweydun st (SN 18y} amsuyg

.EOEOO«O&Q juspmys/jjjyels I0J $32n0sal Bm:voﬁ.m InSUq

"P3MO[[0] 21 SAINSEOUI
[01U0S PUE UOIII3)9P UOTIJUI 10F saonorId 1saq Jey) amsuy

‘ue[d 9seq 1ad suejd Aynuriuos ssaursnq ajepdn pue MaIASY

"uonewIojul [esr3ojormaprds
1s318] oY) N0qE 9[qeadpajmouy] ae [euuosiad [[e sinsuy

‘samseawt asuodsar yuswardunr 0y sunry uresd
01 pue ‘orwapued e Moae A[qissod 01 peaids
AB[3P 10 UFRIUOD O} SLOJJS SZIWIXCIA]

‘Jjuawdo[aaap
auroeA Jurpnour ‘somnseswr ssauparedord
Jusws|dwr o3 swm ures o3 peaxds Aejap 1o
100J PAIIWI] UMM STLIIA MSU Y} TIBILO))

'sased

[euonIppE 0] asuodsar pue ‘uonEolIIOU
‘Uo019919p AJ1es pue adAjqns snua

MU 3] JO UONBZLIdIORIRYD pIdel aIsuyg

‘(ysur orwspued [enueisqns)

s[qisstwsuen A[JnJ 2q 394 JoU AeW Inq ‘sueminy

01 pardepe Joneq A[Sursearour Suwi09q SI STLIA 3}
1ey) Susa3Sns ‘pazi[eoo] s1 peards uewny-o3-uewny
INq UONDSJUI UBWINY JO (S)JAISN[d 10318 — € aspy g

‘stewmy 03 pajdepe

[[8 30U ST sniA o() 1Y) SunseSSns pazijeso] A[ySiy
ST peaids Jnq UOISSIWUSTR]) UBTUNY-0)-UBtuny Paju|
UM UOTIO3JUl uewny Jo (S)I21Sno [[eWS — § asvYyJ

“JORIUOD 9SO[3 B 0} PLaIdSs JO Sa0URISUI 1T

jsour je Jo ‘peaids ueumy-oy-uewng ou Jnq ‘edKiqus
M3 B PIM SULLMO0 I (S)UOT)OJUI UBWINE] — £ ISDYJ

pousd USTY JTWapue]

S[205) JILYSI( [00YIS PILJIU() OUSIA]

S[e0) YesE dMqng

saseyJ mapue ]




14

"ATessa09U J1 sjusunsnipe axew pue Swoy S[enPIATPUT I SUTpuUds 10§ sampasoid MOIASY =

"S92IN0SAI Papadu damooxd pue AJIIULpL
"SJUSPT]S PUB SISAJUNJOA ‘JJe}s J0OYDS [[e Ulel] "suonneddxd [esioAtun pue sudi3Ay Arojerrdsar 10y soonoeid 1s9q pue MIIASY  w

'sdn Jorq 7 JO WINUTUTW B ()M SSOUJ]T JO 9SED UI PUBIIIIOD JO WIRYD AJIUSP] =
‘[T ey verd ssuodsal e dojoaap [m ssuSiso(/fedounid sy ‘e
:sonIIqIsuodsar JUIMO[[O] ) SSUWMSSE [00YOS PALIU) OUSAIL] YOoBT °Z

*a1ed Teyidsoy SuLrnboi jou sjusned eZuon[yuI Jean) J0/pue djen[eAs/sdeLn
0} . SOTUI[d N[}, I0 SOTUI]O UONBZIUNUITIL,, SB Pasn aq 0} payeusIsop somwr[)) yesH 1o sued oddns juswopdurn pue doppas o

*SDTAIDS YIRS JO J0J0aII(]
uoneanpy Jo 204JQ AUN0) ousax] ay) pue yiesH orqng jo wsuntedoq Auno)) ousar o) £q padofaasp suerd poddns Teros
a1 i suepd 2sY) 1eUIPI00d puUe paunuerenb 10 paje[ost a1 oym spuapmys 10f suejd poddns [euoryeonps Jusweidurn pue dororag p

"SYSUI U)[eay SZIWIUTW 0} puodsal 1o
aredaxd 03 op ues uosad yoes jeym pue saonoeid ypesy orjqnd pasoidde noqe yrumuwos [00Yos ) J)EONPS puL )M 2JBOIUNWUWO)) 'O

"orwapued € Jo uoremp oy} Moy3noIy) 9sessip Jo peards oy Sunrwif pue SIOIAISS [RUOTRINDPD
Jo uorstaoxd atp Suturejurews je pawre ue[d AJMURUOD SSAUTSN B PUB SIHIANOE ssouparedaid oropued yusws dur pue dofoasg °q

"I0UJQ YIesH [e00] oy pue snuspued o) Jo A3ojorumopids ay) Aq papm3
Se AIUNUIwos [o0yds oY} MOYSnoIy) 35easIp Jo peaids oif) 95eaI09p 0} SOMSLIW [BIIpaw-uou juswajdurn o) saniiqedes dopeasq e

:SonIIqIsuodsal SUIMO[0] S} SOWMSSE IOLSI(] [OOYDS PILTU[) OUSII] ‘1
*Anp moy 1aye 10J uodn pay[eos are
Aot aseo oy ut ued spasu ey /uosiod 1aty dojoasp 0} woy 10§ pue suoneSIjqo 1OLSIP IO} JO JJe)s OA purual ased]d “(Ainp enxos 1o remsor

3uLmp) 3j10m Je a1e £37) S[IYM Spadul A[rurey pue [euosiod 118y} SsaIppe o} soeyd ut ue[d e dABY IS S93401dWS IO “pare[oap st AousSiows Jo arers & J|

"« D240]29p 51 LouaB.iaua JO 2IDIS D PUD ‘SNI20 42ISDSIP D 35D Ul A11DdD S1Y)
U y40m 0] pa4inba. aq jjim saadojdutd 1LUSIP [00YIS [v 1Y) SuvW Sty A>UdSI2UB P2D]OAP D O JUIAD Y] Ul S12Y.L0M 2214408 ADUB.1oUD SIUI0I2q




[44

(3s1ss® 0} B[qE[IeAR S)IS UO SISEq Papadu-se uo paredun Juwresy) Suowry pue ysiuedg Sunyeads siojordiojur oavl A
uoeo0] Furesw Jusred-1uopnys Je 9SINU/SIOTAISS P3[Ry Jof ajqe} [ (o
(PrYo J10Y3 J0¥ ULIOF SEI[A1 oY) IO UTIS [[IM SJUSIe]) 74 Urea], yuared 0} Juapmys Jo uoneoyunal 10§z (q
(WO0ISSE]D 91} 0} U0ISD SPUAS JO PUL WOOISSE[D S[[BI S[NPSYDS SYI5YO ‘Preo AousSIows 0} ULIOY SOYOTeW) [# Wed] ‘Uoneoymunal ioj 7 (e
:suis ojeidordde ypim sapqes dn 308
1und pue doydej & ‘(seuoyd [199 10) suoydapa ‘(romod yim) ssrdosojoyd e dn 105
*SUOBOTUNWIWOD 9JB)I[IoB] 01 SA[qE) UO SUSIS IS0J
"9]qe[reae suad
se yons sarjddns ao1Jo se [[oM SE “ULI0} UOHEIIUNSI ‘SpIed AouaSIaws ‘sjeays o udis se yons uogejuswnoop syeudoidde oy) [[e aaey nok yeypounsug A
(suoneys sydnjnuw “3-9) ojdoad Jo Joqunu ywestyrusis e
PIoY 01 A¥[Iqe pue 3Ixa ‘Anuo 1episuo)) “(Jooyds Jo azis usAls ojeuidordde asow aq Aewr jeyy uoneso| Jogio Jo ueld Aayes sod) uonesoy syeudordde ue 100jog A

>SN

13)eay I, [o0YdS (s1uared [[e 9JepOWHOIOE 0] J[qR 3q }SN) UOLBIO]

NVIL NOILVOIAINOTT INTIVd

"Ue[d [00UDS 3JeS dAISusya1duwio)) ay) ul payesof samnpaoold juswsjduun
“3J1] JO §SO[ ST 219y} J] “Sjuopms pue jyejs 103 poddns revonows pue poddns woneonps 10y sopraocid je) ueld 1940091 & dojeas(g 'q

‘Tooyos e aoe[d aye) WS jey) seSueyo Jenusjod pue dj1s
J0OY9s 12 UONIJUT JO JU)XI Y} UO SISPJOYSNEIS [[E 0) UONEULIOFUT SPIA0d ‘90LJ() SUOREOTUNWIO) (IS 9Y) M SUDJIOm =

"UaYe} SUOTIOR JUSWNOOP [[IM OYM JJE)S S0LJO SJeuTIso(] =

"I99LF(O UONBULIONU] JIMD (IS(1 9Up 03 N drwapued yiim Judsqe AJlep SJUSprys pue Jyels Jo 1oqun o) odoy  «




£

'SIND00 JSISESIP B YINS 810}0G—MOY PUB ‘aIoyM ‘JBYM SSOP OLM SUIULISISP O) [eaNLD Si

J| "9ouB)SISSE SPISINO JNOYM J3)SesIp Jofew e Jalje SINOY [BIaAdS )sil 8y} Buunp sjuapngs jo Ajojes pue aied oy} ainsua o} pasedaid aq Jsnw yejs [ooyos
ay) ‘alojeiay] °sayis |ooyos o} puodsal Ajsjelpawii 0} sjqe aq [[m [euuosiad a1y Jo [eoipawl Aouabisue jey asjuetend ou s siay) Jeisesip Jofew B JO JUSAS sy uj

S3LLITIBISNOdS3Y ANV S311NA TINNOSYId LIS TOOHIS

) 18yoea | neapes||ig eloujed Zado7 uesng
p 1ayoes | snod SMIN ouljawor Apues
q labeuep ase) Zonbupoy eLojo buep buopy
B labeuepy asen Z)Uooy| uyop neapea||ig eldkjed
p Jayoes| uosuap Ayiey Boeg sin
} layoes| lueg uouueys Jouin] ydssop
} J0jasunog) aouepine) Jsaien ZopUBWSH uesns uojsiieH wes
p uea( aoueping) shod MNIN e Asupnon
9 labeuey soy10 oulswor] Apues 19193YM UA|Lel
e Jabeuepy 82110 ejlie euay 18[9y UA|Ley
(dA0qe
woiy 19939] Suipuodsariod jsip)
JISVL ADNADIYANA A LLLL ALVNIALTV dHIINHIN AAV.LS

"B} JUSWIT e oA JO Joquawl SUons € ST ped|
Wea) Sy} SMSUS 3583  “9A0qE (0-B) SIONI] Ay} woy yse) AousFiowd ue SuruSisse Mo[aq Meyd oY) Ul SISQUISUI Wes) UOHEdJIun-o1 MoK Ul [[IJ 9589[d




ve

A|uo sjinpe pazuoyine o} s)uspnls [ENPIAIPU] 8seajal 0} pojaw paziuebio ue sjeyyioe) [IM Jey) WwajsAs aseajal Juspn)s e saysiqelsy g

(ebed wea) asesjay Juapnig 8as) '(pied Aouabiawe ay} UO UORBULIOJUI U} SSZUBLILLNS YIYM ‘Wa)sAs
BAIJ08YJ3 Jayj0 Jo preo Aouabiews Jo saidod “a'l) Juapms A1one 10 waysks pied Aousbiawa Jusund e SUIBJUIBW WOOJSLIOY JO WOOISSE]O Yoes Jey) sainsug

‘ajeAud Jaquinu jey) deay o) usye) ale suonedaid Jey pue Japio Buipiom Ui ae sauoyd Aousblaws ay) jey) ainsug

‘Buyeuigap Buipnjoul sesodind uojjejuswwNIop Joj SsjuspIoul p10oal 0) uosiad e ajeubissq

(eeLe-LSY)

9010 uoneuLIoju] dljqnd JOu)SIQ 8Y} O} eipaw ay) Jajal A|je1p1od pjnoys [suuosiad JoYjo ||y "UOHeULIoUl Sesjal O} pazuoyine

s1 saubisep Jo J90WQ UoleULIOU| 1|qnd JoLIsI Y} pue aaubisap Jo Juapusjuladng ayy AluQ JuspusiuLadng JRUORONIISU| 8} JO SUONDAIIP BY) MO}|0
1abeuely buluued AousBrew3 ay) pue (s)uspusjuuiadng [euononisul ayj ABOU [[IM OYM pH96-ChY JB ‘ZallleY BSSauRA ‘1800 UONBULIOJY|

aland 1osig auy Ao -asuodsai elpaw pue Aousbiswa ay) o (aull apisino ue woly Lge-/G 10) |Ege/ 1e uonels Buioyuop [eaus) sy AjoN
(Z'229 0d) "81e(dwoo 0} eIpau |fe 10} }o3Ys UI-ubIS e apnjou|

:0) pasaype aq pjnoys sauijapinb Buimojjoj sy

‘uolysey Alepio ue

U] UOReULIOJUI U ‘[03u09 Jowni ‘salinbul s|puey 0} elpal pue ‘siequisw Aunwwod pajsalejul ‘sjusied 0) 8|qISS3I08 UOHEIO| B Ul J8JUS?7) UONEIUNWWOD
‘(odubisep

i0) Juspusjuadng sy} pue (uosiad pazuoyine Jo) jediould sy Aq Ajuo pasn aq o} Jaquinu pue aull suoyda|a) & Jo ash BAISNIIXS 82i0jua pue ajeubisa(
"3|qe|IeA. JOU SI UOHEBIIUNWIOD S910A-01-8010A JUSAS S} Ul JJE)S U)M UOHEIIUNWILLIOD USHUM IO} WSiSAS ajeula)(y

"s|eubis 8010A pue [18q Yjoq Sapnjoul pue sjuspnis Pue Yels o} UMouy |jam aie Jey sieubis Buiuiem Jsjsesip oads Jo walshs

© S

:Sjuawwald Bumoyjoj auj Jo Bupsisuod wajsAs SUOKEIIUNWLIOD B SaYSIe]ST

‘waysks Appng e ybnouyy swes) ui siom o} s18yoes) sebeinoous ‘sainpaooid [jup pue Jajsesip Buunp safigisuodsel no ALed 0} paurel) ale Jels [fe Jey) sainsug

"JjosinoA uo yoeq
SapInn uiny o} ydwape Jou 0Q HO Way} WiN} 0} MOY PUB SAIEA JO-NUS JO LIOREIO} JO Sjqeabpajmouy ase siaquisw wea| diysiopeaT |00ydS ajes saInsus

"s}s1| AJojuaAul
[ediuIayd pue ‘sispuodsal pie jsuy AousBisws ‘sisquinu suoyd AousBiews ay) pue uogeuLojul wes] diysiepesT [00YdS ajeg sajepdn Apejnbal pue sjsod

‘gjendoidde se satousbe souejsisse [ealpaw pue ‘Juswipedsp aly ‘satouabe
JusLUDI0jUS ME] 20| JO/PUE YElS S0LJO [eljus) Sjelidoidde Ljim UOHEOIUNWILIOD SUlBUIBW PUB SO [E1)USD PUE B)IS [00YIS B} USBMISG LIOSIEY| 8y} SE S}oY

|

Wiea ] djysiapes [0049g 3Jes/[ediouiig




Y4

JaquisnoN

(owi | jeuoionsul) “We 0o:4}

1202 '€} 4840100

18g0j00

Jaqualdsg

snbny

Ainp

swil

aal]

YIuow

3npayas |1uQ a1ld 2202-1202

SI00Y0S 01 SHSIA 40 (B)ZIT1 e
SIIAPNYS LA SOUIFINU/UONATISIP PAUESIYT T17CE 3pOD P
1PISINQ £q UOBEASISIY T'L79 Od

€501-/8¥

epueg sApejo

133D 81E9P|Y) SHI

auoyd

Josinadngjedisund

weiboid ayijd3es

‘(weiboid spaap [el0ads ‘Jooyos-aid ‘1s)us) Bunualed :sjdwex3) “Aejerpaww AousBiraws ay) jo (ayis inok o} juadelpe Jo uo) sweiboid sjsles Aue WIop| “$1

"a)is 8y} J0 sosHajorIEYD BNnbjun 8y} 0} uonusye Jenoed ypm ‘Allenuue uejd [easi-a)s ay) sejepdn pue SMaIASY ¢

'saunpaooid Aousbiaius Jo aseme sle jjels pue s)uspns o) S30IASS SpIACId OYM [uUosIad JaLo Jey} sainsug "z},

"PajonJsqo aie SaJN0J PIEPUE)S Ji S3JN0I LOHENOBAS WOCISSE|D SR SUBld '} |

'spiezey Ajajes Joj suojjoadsul ayis tejnbas ainpayos o) pue sjualed pue ‘syuspris ‘Yejs yym uejd Aousblsws ay) smainal pue s|up Aousbiauis sejnbal S9|NPaYIsS 0}

‘abewep 1o} saoue)jdde pue swajsAs Ajjnn Bulpjing o8y
"$8INPad0ld 9ses|ay Juapnig ssinsdng
'suoljeuljsap adue|nquie piodal 0} pue yels pue sjuspnis painful Anusp o) swea) abew) [eoipaw AousBiswa ypm o

J8Jua) UOKEIIUNWWOY) SjeUIPIO0IYS]ige)sT
Juswdinba pue saijddns g0 seacdel 0 pue suosiad painfulpaddes; a)eso] o) Wwooi Asas yasess Ajeanews)shs o} suojesado 3N0Sal-pue-yoiess Jonpuo)
JUSLLUOIIAUS 8IND3S pue 8jes e Ulejujew o) SIOPLLIoS pue sjiey asinadns/iojuop

'Pie 1S Jasiuiwpy

O 0T 0w oL

‘sndwe)

Buusyus woy suosiad pazuoyineun yigiyosd pue ‘seaie sjeudoidde o) eipsw pue ‘Jeys Jousip ‘sjuased ‘jpuuosiad Aousbiows Joaup 0} saouenUS [oNed ‘B

:Jels Jooyos o) sannp Bumoyjo) ay subissy ‘g




9¢

wd opg 220z 'y Aenuged
awij) ajeq la)saweg puodag

'wdgiigl 1202 ‘8 JaquianoN
awng ajeq Joysawiag 3sii4

11110 uonedyIuNay zZ02-1202

wd0z:z 2202 ‘L1 Yorep
‘wd )z} ‘¥l 189000 INO 34eyS elulojiie] 1eain) — | 20¢ 4890100
awj dled

(z82z¢ apon uoyeanp3) ‘sjooyds Aiepuodas ui 19)sawes
yoea 32uo jsea] Je pue sjooyds Arejuswals uj Japenb Jooyas yoes aouo Jses| Je pasnoeid aq j{eys sainpasoid pjoH pue J8Ao) ‘doiq £'91SE NV Jod
a[npayog ||1ia enbypes zz0z-1202

wdogz 2202 61 _(udy [00y0S Jayy
Wegs'l) 2202 'S¢ kenigad aull | [euoRonsu|
wdgizl 1202 0 J9qUBNON joun
wdgy 1202 S} Joquigidas ooy aiojeg

awn| aleq J9)saueg

Jea A |00Y2S 8y} 10j S[[LQ ¥ / 3NPAYIS [[14Q UMOPXI0T Z202-420Z

aunp

Aep

[00YoS Jayy ‘wrd G):g 2202’2 ludy |udy

yoren

Aeruga4

(younT) 'wrd ogz) 220z ‘gz Aenuep Arenuer

Jaquiaoa(




LT

JaA0 pasejoap si SISLO ay} [un Aejs pinoys yels |00yos 0L
"SMOpUIM WOy Aeme pue sysap Japun Jab o} pajonnsul aq pinoys suokians ‘pieay si aiyunb jey) jusas ayi Ul g
usnib s [eubis Jesjo-|[e ayj |jun WOOISSEID BY) Ul Ulewal 0} aJe Sjuspnlg e
Syeaiqino |euonippe Aue Jo 9010 juod) ay} AJioN
WwooJ 8y ul soussaid Jay/siy Joj SJUN0ooe JUSpPN}S Yoes jey) os papioid sjeays dn-ubis Yym JOOy aU} UO pajess aq 0} 88 SWOO! Ul Sjuspnisg
suoponsul apinb Aouabiews WooISse}d MO|j0) PUB SI00P %007
SWOQ! Ui 81 S)uspN}s Jjun Wool apisino eale ay} ssinuadng
swooJ ojui ajqissod se sjuapnys Auew se Joallq
swooletoy 0) Ajgjelpauiwl pesdold e
:suonoe Buimotjoj sy} axe) pinoys s1ayes) ‘uanib si [eubis Jabuep jusuiuwi sy} Usym
"suoijonijsut Joj Wwiool buysaw pajeubisep Jayio Jo WooIyoun| yejs sy ul s|quiasse pinoys paubisseun aJe oym sIoyoes |
"pajoallp se sajeb pue ‘si00p 80140 ‘SI00p eLsiajed ‘sioop Alojene jje Bupjool Joj sjqisuodsal aq [jIm JOJeUIPIO0?) Jueld 8y |
8IO suoliediunwwo) JoLIsiq U} Jo UoIBIIP SUY} JSpUN JORJUOD Uoewwoul Jlqnd se sales 0} uosiad e Aypuapl [im asubisap Jo jedioulid 8y
'suosiad painful Jo s1000p Jojpue ‘sueiprend ‘sjusied Ayjou o} Jojeso| Aouabiaiua Se SAISS ||IM Bjjie Buoy
"SUOHEDIUNWILIOD [BUISIUI JO} UOIJEIS BULIIUOH [BAUSD pUE 9210 JOLISIP S} UjiM UOKESIUNWWoD suoyd ulejurew [im sebeuely soyo syl
‘abreys u aq [m Jj8aYp UAJUB BoUSSqR S,88INU BY) U
tuoy uoijesldsy jooyos :aoejd buusyieb syeaipul
‘Aieiq ueyy Jayjo §1) soeid Butiayjed e se paziinn aq [im eaue pajeubisap Jauyjo Jo Aleigi| ay) :pie jsuy Aouabiows Jo ab1eyd Ul aq M SSINU [00YDS BY | 'z
"Pay)] st UMOPY0| 8} UM 8)edlpul 0) spelL 8] |[Im WSISAS Yd B} JOAO JuaLLsouNoUUR Uy
uoBuep uy si sy oA §j :1HOIH “Aj8jes ino jab jouued nof Jj :3@IH “olqeleAR St yjed Bjes & Jj INNY ‘JUBJIESSY SADY UE JO JUSAS 8y} Ul LH9IH4-3AIH-NNY
"Iaquisway "umop 00| 0} Jjels feubis o} solpel Aem-om U} JOAO pue Wa)sAS Yd U} JOAO Speww aq [IIM [[e9 UMOPYO0T [BqiaA  — leubig JeBueq jusuiwwy '}
‘'suoijesado wes) | YMS 10 sayosess Jsjdoayay (p) Jo ssjoid ssew (g)
‘sndwea uo juejiesse/sopniul pauve (z) ‘Ag-moysybuijooys Aq-eaup (}) :snduwea uo naoo suonenys Buimojo} a4 JO AI0W 10 3UO uaym sjsixe Aousbiawa swainxe uy

o™ <t 10 © N

IHOI-3GIH-NNY ] 8INpad0id UMOpya0 ] [ Jabueq Jueuuu]|




njue’) eeyoIN

8¢C

JUES UOUUBYS

Zuooy] uyor

01pojsn?) sojie)

Nwzm_hgm eLo|o edeq sinT
opadY X3y N&—._mmm> euliey|
INWO
UONUIAILJ Kdugndy, I0[3sUN0)) 13318
NEeIPeING EPLYBJ ‘UO)SAIBF] WES

£12)3199¢ s [edpurlg
‘II[YAN UATLIBIA

UOSHaA AUjey]
oujjouwio] Apues

zoedo] uesng

epueg sApej

Jauin] ydasof

Buep buopy

ZopUeulay uesng

133BUEBRY 358 JO[3SUNO)) IDUEPINL)

snod MIN

10JBUIP100))

‘BB BUY

uB3([ duUBpIng
‘agjLIy AduipIne)

Jeduag

"A’'PA “WOSIIM 'V I

"auoyds|s} eIA pajoejL0D 8q 0} pasu Buip|ing [0oyos 8y} spisino sjdosd ay) Ajuo “‘UoISSas U S|
[00UOS UM N300 SBSLIO UBUM ‘sawl} Y10 Jy 331 suoyd e BIA uojeLLIoul JWwsuel) o} A1essaoau aq [IIM Jl ‘J00Yds au} woy Aeme i 421s Jo Jaquinu able|  usym Jo
'spoiiad uojeden ‘spuyeam Buunp sinaoo sistio e Usyp “uofjow uj 8a1} suoyd ay) sjes aaubisap 10 Jojessiuwpe Buipng sy} ‘SISIXa SISUD & Jeu) PayLISA SI}l 30UQ

3341 INOHd

‘pasejoap s| AousBiawa Jo ajeys e pue ‘sin320 se)sesip e ased uj Ayjoedes siy) uj yiom o} paiinbai ag |Im saakojdwa Jo13s1p [ooyos |je Jey) sueaw siy]
‘KouaBiawa pase|dap e Jo Juana ay) U] s1aIOM 991AI8S Aouabiowe awosaq saafojdwsa ayqnd jje Jey) :sejels apo7) JUSWILIIAOS) BIUIOYI|RY) JO 3JB)S Bl 1
| 3RIL ‘Al uoising ‘g seydey)

‘9p0D JUBWIUIBA0Y) BILIOJI[E) JO BJRlS




6T

ealy WooIsse|) siigjsdn swooJssejo Jeau siejsdn sWwooJssed Jeau siejsdn J18[9ayp UAuEp Kiejai09g s jedipuug
Wooy 98y/1ejeay | SIEJSUMOQg wooy uojeasnay |00Y2S JO SoUERUT SPISIND uojsiieH wes 10{95UN0Y
ealy Woolsse|) siiejsdn ooy LOREaIIDy snejsdn Buep buopy Jabeuepy esen
ealy WooIsse|) siieysdn W00y Uofealday SIe}SUMOQ/WO0Y UONEaIoaY eljle4 eusy Jojgsuno)
Wooy 0oy/Is|eay] Silejsumog |00Y9S JO Yoeg/epIsiny ealy Jojesy] SIEISumoq nespeayiig eined Jobeuey esen
W00y D9Y/Jejeay SIiBjsumoq 00y Uoneainay SIIB}SUMOQ/WO0Y UOREaIo8Y Spod SN Jobeueyy asen
ealy WooJsse|) suejsdn LU0OY uones99y |o0y2S JO 9oUBRUT BPISIND uue Asupno) ueaQ 90uepIng
Baly WO0JSSe| ) siieysdn wooy 98y swiooJsse|o feap sJiejsdn UOS|IM "V Mew [ediouug
uonedo buisseq uoRed0 youn UOREI0T [00YIS Jayyjeioeg aweN sndwe?) [00ydS ybIH |

He1s Jo Juswkojdeq Aypqusia snduwed




0¢

1202 ‘6 Adeniga4 :uo |iouncd ayis [ooyos ay) Aq pajdope sem ueid jooyos siy; ‘g

sleq ainjeubig JIrY) Jiouno) Buiwsnos
STSETEEY
aeq aimeubig {ediound jooyos

@'P3 UOSTIM ¥ HEW

‘passapy

1202 6 Arenuged :uo |founod ajs jooyas oy} Aq pajdope sem ueid j0OYIS SIYL ‘¥

JoW U9sq aAey sjejdwia) Ueld |00YoS
8jes sAIsUaYaIduI0D Joulsi] [00UIS PaYIuf 0USSiS Bl U} PaUINO S Sjuswalinbal ([e SaASI9q PUB UB|d [0040S SJeS SAISUBYBIdWOS au) JO JUSJUCO SU) POMSIAS [IDUNOD) YIS J00YDS By €

palisep Ji ‘sisquiswi JaYl0

uoneziuetiso sakojdwa payisselo psziubooal sy Jo saejuasaldal e s oym sakojdwa pausseo auQ
{00L0s 3y} Spuale pliyo asoym jussed suQ

uopeziuebio sakojdwe pajeaynias peziuboos sy} Jo sAReluasaIdal B St OyMm Jayoes) alug

aaubisap s jediuud sy} Jo [ediouud sy

'si9quuew Bumojo} s} Jo winwiuiL By} L seRiLILed Bujuuerd jojes (0oyos e pauLoj sejebajep s}t J0 19UN0YD SJIS 00YIS Bl ‘| §ZZE 8p0J UojeoNp BRUOYED JOPUN '
"Me| ajeys pue Aoljod pieoq Buitissrob JOLISIp LM 0UBPIODOE UJ PALLIO} SEM PUE ‘Palnisuod ARISLI00 S| 11oUN0Y) aYiS joouss a8yl '}
:Buimolfoy sy} o preoq ay} sainsse pue ‘leaosdde 1oy pieoq Buiuseaob Jousip sy o) ueyd fajes J00U0S BAISUBYaIdWOD S|y} SPUBLILLICIR) (DSS) [10UN0) 8YS [00YOS Bu L

$3JUBINSSY pue suoljepustuLlodsy




Fresno

Economic Linda Hayes Board Chair
Opportunities Emilia Reyes Chief Executive Officer
Commission

SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL

Date: February 9, 2021 Program: School of Unlimited Learning
(SOUL)
Agenda ltem #: V Director: Mark A. Wilson, Ed.D.

Subject: 2020/2021 CSI Grant Funding | Officer: Michelle Tutunjian

Recommended Action

Staff recommends Governing Council ratification of SOUL’s Comprehensive Support and
Improvement (CSI) funding for 2021-2022 school year. The online grant application was
submitted on January 7, 2021 for $170,123.

Background

The Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires the local educational agency (LEA), in
partnership with stakeholders, to develop and implement a plan to improve student
outcomes in each school identified for CSl. SOUL is eligible for Comprehensive Support
and Improvement Funds for the 2020-2021 school year. As a condition of funding, the
LEA must partner with stakeholders, including teachers and parents to locally develop
and implement a CSI plan in the 2021-22 school. In addition, CSI interventions,
strategies, and activities must align to the goals, actions, and services identified in the
LEA's LCAP. All CSl goals are in full alignment of SOUL’s charter and LCAP goals, as well
as Fresno EOC’s strategic goals.

Fiscal Impact

SOUL’s estimated allocation of CSI funding for the 2021/2022 school is $170,123. SOUL
has received CSI funding for the past two consecutive years. Funds have been used to
provide needed support to students at risk of not graduating from high school.

Conclusion

The grant application was approved by the California Department of Education on
January 8, 2021.

31

Siion

PARTNERSHIP

@ FresnoEOC.org Fl ©@ ¥ @FresnoEOC

QS (559) 263-1000




From: School Improverment and Support Office

To: Mark Willson; Mark Wilson
Cc: SISO@cde.ca.gov
Subject: Approved: 2020-21 Every Student Succeeds Act Comprehensive Support and Improvement Local Educational
Agency Application for Funding
Date: Friday, January 8, 2021 9:43:23 AM
Fresno EOCIT Notice:

External Message. Think before you click!
Please do not reply to this email as this is an automated message.

The California Department of Education has reviewed and approved the 2020-21
Every Student Succeeds Act Comprehensive Support and Improvement Local
Educational Agency Application for Funding submitted by School of Unlimited
Learning. If you have any questions, please contact the School Improvement and
Support Office by phone at 916-319-0833 or by email at SISO@cde.ca.gov.

32



1/712021

Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)

Depariment of m

EDUCATION A

2020-21 Every Student Succeeds Act
Comprehensive Support and Improvement
Local Education Agency Application for Funding

The application status last changed to "Submitted" on 01/07/21 13:46:11

Application Overview

Note: Each section of this application must be completed before advancing to subsequent sections.

PURPOSE

Section 1003 of the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) provides resources and assistance to local educational
agencies (LEAs) to improve student outcomes in schools that meet the criteria for Comprehensive Support and
Improvement (CSI).

The ESSA requires LEAs to submit an application in order to receive ESSA, Section 1003 funds for CSI. As a
condition of funding, the LEA must partner with stakeholders, including school principals and other school leaders,
teachers, and parents to locally develop and implement a plan for the school to improve student outcomes. School
planning and LEA support and assistance for each school receiving comprehensive support are incorporated into the
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) processes.

For Federal guidance on Supplement not Supplant for school improvement, see question 29a, page 21 to 22 located
at https://go.usa.gov/xdcPV.

The California Department of Education (CDE) is accepting applications from LEAs with schools that met the
criteria for CSI on the 2019 California School Dashboard (Dashboard).

STATUTORY AUTHORITY
ESSA Section 1003—School Improvement (https://go.usa.gov/xfAWr), pages 9 through 11.

ESSA Section 1111(d)(1)-Comprehensive Support and Improvement (https://go.usa.gov/xfAC2), pages 33 through
35.

Senate Bill 115 Budget Act of 2020 SEC. 61 Item 6100-134-0890 of Section 2, of Schedule 2 located at
https:/go.usa.gov/ixG3nb.

GRANT INFORMATION

The Budget Act of 2020 appropriated $129,415,000 in ESSA, Section 1003 local assistance funding to LEAs for CSI.
The project period for this application begins February 15, 2021, and ends on September 30, 2022. Fiscal Year (FY)
2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds are available to each eligible LEA that submits an approvable application and will be
allocated based on a formula. The formula takes into consideration the total number of schools, statewide, that were
identified for CSI on the 2019 Dashboard. FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds must be used to develop and
implement a CSI plan for each identified school in the 2021-22 school year.

ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

On March 27, 2020, California received approval for a waiver of the school identification requirements of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act, as reauthorized by the ESSA. The waiver addresses accountability and school identification
requirements in sections 1111(c)(4) and 1111(d)(2)(C)-(D) and temporarily suspends the state’s federal requirement to
identify CSl and other school support categories under the ESSA for the 2020-21 school year. As such, schools will not be
identified for or have the opportunity to exit a school support category on the 2020 Dashboard. Schools that were identified
as a result of the 2019 Dashboard for CSI will retain their assistance status in the 2020-21 school year. A copy of the full
waiver is available on the CDE ESSA web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/es/documents/covid1 9waiverresponse. pdf.

https:/iww3.cde.ca.gov/gmart/csileaprintapp.aspx

33



1712021 Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)

In order to continue to provide support to those LEAs with schools that are eligible for CSI, only LEAs with schools that were
identified for CSI on the 2019 Dashboard can apply for FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funding. An LEA is defined as a
county office of education, school district, or direct-funded charter school.

Schools were eligible for CSl on the 2019 Dashboard if they were a public high school with a graduation rate below 68
percent or, at least, the lowest-performing 5 percent of Title | schools.

CSil criteria and program information are located at https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp.
ALLOWABLE ACTIVITIES AND COSTS

As a condition of funding, the LEA must partner with stakeholders, including school principals and other school leaders,
teachers, and parents to locally develop and implement a CSl plan in the 2021-22 school year for each school meeting the
criteria for CSI.

School planning and LEA assistance for each school that meets the criteria for CSI will be incorporated into the LCAP and
SPSA planning processes for the 2021-22 school year. If FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds for CSI are used to
implement actions/services to meet a goal articulated in the LCAP, those CSI funds must be included in the LCAP. FY 2020
ESSA, Section 1003 funds for CSI that are distributed from the LEA to the school must be included in the 2021-22 SPSA. In
addition, CSl interventions/strategies/activities must align to the goals, actions, and services identified in the LEA's LCAP.

Under the ESSA, CSI plans are required to be evidence-based. Section 8101(21)(A) of the Elementary and Secondary Act,
as amended by the ESSA, defines an evidence-based intervention as being supported by strong evidence, moderate
evidence, promising evidence, or evidence that demonstrates a rationale. ESSA, Section 1003 funds require the use of
“evidence-based” interventions that meet higher levels of evidence. The table below lists ESSA's top three levels of
evidence.

Demonstrate a statistically significant effect on improving student outcomes:

Level 1: Strong

Evidence Based on at least one well-designed and well-implemented experimental study

Level 2: Moderate Based on at least one well-designed and well-implemented quasi-experimental study

Evidence
Level 3: Promising Based on at least one well-designed and well-implemented correlational study with statistical
Evidence controls for selection bias

The United States Department of Education’s non-regulatory guidance on evidence-based interventions is located at
https://go.usa.govixdcEU.

ESSA, Section 1003 funds must be prioritized and focused towards the area(s) identified for improvement for each school,
based on their needs assessments and root cause analysis. Funds can only be spent on evidence-based interventions/
strategies/activities, directly related to the following CSI improvement plan development and implementation efforts:

» Building capacity

= Partnering with stakeholders

» Conducting needs assessments and root cause analysis

» 8electing and implementing evidence-based interventions/strategies/activities

= Using data and outcomes to monitor and evaluate improvement efforts
Reviewing/identifying and addressing, through implementation of the CSI plan, resource inequities, which may
include a review of LEA- and school-level budgeting

Federal planning requirements are established in the California Education Code Section 64001 (https:/go.usa.gov/xdcES)
and the Approved LCAP template on the CDE web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/.

Planning instructions for the LCAP and SPSA are located at hitps://www,cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. CSI program requirements and
information are located at https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw/t1/csi.asp.

DISALLOWABLE ACTIVITIES AND COSTS
The use of federal funds, including ESSA, Section 1003 funds must be consistent with the Office of Management and

Budget's (OMB) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. OMB
information is located at htps://www.grants.gov/web/grants/learn-grants/grant-policies/omb-uniform-guidance-2014. himl,

In addition, the California legislature stipulated in Senate Bill 115 that ESSA, Section 1003 funds shall not be expended to
hire additional permanent staff.

For Federal guidance on Supplement not Supplant for school improvement, see question 29a, page 21 to 22 located at
https://go.usa.gov/xdcPV.

https:/Mmww3.cde.ca.gov/gmart/csileaprintapp.aspx



1/7/2021

Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)
GRANT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Actual expenditures for each performance period within the grant period shall be reported to the CDE as part of regular
grant management and administration. The table below details reporting information and timelines for FY 2020 CS} funds.

* Funding Plan Adjustment |February 15,
Report 1 = Budget Summary 2021, to June 30, |July 31, 2021
» Expenditures 2021
CSI Plan
. July 1, 2021, to
Approval/Adoption Dates ' . October 31,
Repart 2 Expenditures gggﬁember 30, 2021
Federal Report
October 1, 2021,
Report 3 Expenditures to January 31, February 28,
2022
2022
. February 1, 2022,
Report 4 Expenditures to June 30, 2022 July 31, 2022
. = Final Expenditures and
z%ag:sf i Closeout Report él;lyt;;nZ: e2rzé(’;o October 31,
Evaluation » Grant Performance Report 2052 ' 2022
Federal Report

In addition to standard expenditure reporting requirements for each performance period, the LEA must submit a Budget
Summary and Budget Narrative with Report 1. The Budget Summary will combine LEA- and school-level budget amounts
by Object Code for each authorized funding category, as applicable.

In addition, Report 2 requires the LEA to report the date the CSI plan was approved/adopted by the school and LEA. The
Final Report and Grant Evaluation requires the LEA to submit final expenditure data, a Final Budget Summary, and a Grant
Performance Report. The CDE will provide additional guidance for reporting requirements. If the CDE does not receive the
required reports, funding may be delayed, or the CDE may bill the LEA to recover funds distributed to the LEA.

APPORTIONMENTS

The first apportionment is 25 percent of the total LEA allocation and is based on an approved 2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA
Application for Funding. Subsequent apportionments for each grant performance period are based on claimed expenditures
less prior cumulative payments.

Note: Reported expenditures are used for the purpose of calculating the LEA's apportionment. The use of federal funds
must be consistent with the OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards; ESSA requirements, and requirements in the 2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA Application for Funding.

The acceptance and approval of reported expenditures do not preclude the CDE, in any way, from conducting program
monitoring or audits,

The CDE will process apportionments approximately one month after the final date of each reporting period.
GRANT MONITORING

LEAs and schools that receive FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds for CSI will be monitored through the CDE’s Federal and
Program Monitoring process.

APPLICATION AND FUNDING RESULTS TIMELINE

Funding Profile Posted to the CDE Web Page December 2020

2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA Application for Funding
Release Date

2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA Application for Funding
Webinar Walk-through

January 6, 2021

January 7, 2021, at 10 a.m.

https://iwvww3.cde.ca.gov/gmart/csileaprintapp.aspx

35



1/7/2021

Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)

202021 ESSA CSI LEA Application for Funding Due
to the CDE

2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA Application for Funding
Review by CDE Staff

Funding Results and Schedule of Apportionments
Posted to the CDE Web Page

January 20, 2021, by 4 p.m.

January/February 2021

March/April 2021

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

The CDE will conduct a webinar to walk through the process to complete the 2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA Application for
Funding. The webinar will be conducted on January 7, 2021, at 10 a.m, Communications regarding the webinar will be
emailed to eligible LEAs.

APPLICATION PROCESS

The 2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA Application for Funding is an online application that includes six sections: (1) Intent to Apply;
(2) General Assurances, Certifications, Terms, and Conditions; (3) Local Educational Agency Applicant Information; (4)
Narrative Responses; (5) 202021 Comprehensive Support and Improvement Preliminary Funding Plan; and (6)
Signatures.

In order to receive ESSA, Section 1003 funds, each eligible LEA must complete and submit the 202021 ESSA CSI LEA
Application for Funding to the CDE by the date specified in the Application and Funding Results Timeline. The LEA will
receive email confirmation upon submission. The CDE will review each LEA application. If the LEA wishes to revise its
online application after submission, the LEA must resubmit the application prior to the application due date, as specified in
the Application and Funding Results Timeline.

The CDE is not able to modify the application information after submission. Incomplete or late applications may delay
funding.

Section 1: Intent to Apply

Each local educational agency (LEA) with schools that met the criteria for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSl)
on the 2019 California School Dashboard must submit the 2020-21 Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) CSI LEA
Application for Funding. Any LEA that chooses to not apply for fiscal year (FY) 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funding for CSl is
asked to submit this application to the California Department of Education (CDE) to communicate its intent. This will allow
the CDE to reallocate the amount of funds available to those LEAs choosing to apply for funding.

Pursuant to Section 1111(d)(1)(B) of the ESSA, upon notification from the CDE, the LEA shall, for each school identified by
the CDE and in partnership with stakeholders, locally develop and implement a plan for the school to improve student
outcomes.

Choosing not to accept ESSA, Section 1003 funds does not relieve the LEA from meeting its statutory obligations under
ESSA, Section 1111(d)(1). FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds provides resources and assistance to the LEA with schools
meeting the criteria for CSI. FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds must be used to develop and implement a CSI plan for
each eligible school in the 2021-22 school year.

Please check one of the boxes below:

The LEA intends to apply for FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds. By checking this box, the LEA must complete the
remaining five sections of this application.

© ! The LEA does not intend to apply for FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds. By checking this box, the LEA understands its
statutory obligation to meet the requirements of the ESSA, Section 1111(d)(1). The LEA will be redirected to Section 6 to
sign and submit this application.

Section 2: General Assurances, Certifications, Terms, and Conditions

General assurances, certifications, terms, and conditions are requirements of applicants and sub-grantees as a condition of
receiving funds. The signed grant application submitted to the California Department of Education (CDE) is a commitment to
comply with the general assurances, certifications, terms, and conditions associated with the grant.

GENERAL ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS

The general assurances and certifications are available on the CDE Funding Forms web page at
hitps://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/fm/generalassurances2020.asp. Applicants do not need to sign and return the general

https:/iwww3.cde.ca.gov/gmart/csileaprintapp.aspx

36



1/7/2021 Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)

assurances and certifications with the grant application. Instead, applicants must download the general assurances and
certifications to keep them on file and available for compliance reviews, complaint investigations, or audits.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The 2020-21 Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) Local Educational
Agency (LEA) Application for Funding must be electronically signed by the authorized agent of the LEA and submitted to the
CDE using the online application.

The first apportionment will be processed upon review and approval of the 2020-21 ESSA CSI LEA Application for Funding.
Subsequent apportionments will be processed based upon approved expenditures reported by the LEA.

All fiscal year 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds must be encumbered, expended, and legally obligated within the dates
designated and must not exceed the maximum amount indicated in the Apportionment Letter.

In addition, the LEA agrees to comply with the following state and federal program terms and conditions:

1. Utilize the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and School Plan for Student Achievement processes to
locally develop and implement a CSI plan in the 2021-22 school year that meets federal requirements for each
school receiving funds under Section 1003 of the ESSA for CSl.

. Align improvement strategies and activities to the goals, actions, and services in the LEA's LCAP.

. Monitor schools receiving Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds for CSI.

. Use a rigorous review process to recruit, screen, select, and evaluate any external partners, other than the county
office of education and other agencies within the state system of support that the LEA would partner with to develop
and implement the plan for CSI.

5. Align other federal, state, and local resources to carry out activities supported with funds received.

8. Modify practices and policies as appropriate, to provide operational flexibility that enables full and effective

implementation of the plans to improve student outcomes in schools meeting the criteria for CSI.

7. Assure that each school that the LEA serves will receive all of the state and local funds it would have received in the

absence of FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds.

8. Ensure that FY 2020 ESSA, Section 1003 funds are spent as indicated in this application, and agree that funds will

be used only to provide support to the school/s meeting the criteria for CSI, including locally developing,
implementing, monitoring, evaluating, and approving plans for the school to improve student outcomes.

AN

Section 3: Local Educational Agency Applicant Information

School of Unlimited Learning (County: Fresno)
2336 Calaveras St., Fresno, 93721
Preliminary FY 2020 LEA Allocation; $170,283.00
County/District Code: 10 62166
NCES: 07497 DUNS: 078788023

Please verify if the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Applicant Information listed above is accurate then check the
appropriate box below. Applicant Information can be verified on the California School Directory web page located at

https://\www.cde.ca.gov/schooldirectory/.

The Preliminary Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 LEA Allocation can be verified on the CDE CSI LEA Fiscal Information web page at
hitps://www.cde ca.gov/sp/switl/csileafiscalinfo.asp .

LEAs can verify their Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number through the Online Public Update for Schools web
page located at hitps://www3.cde, ca.gov/opuscds/default. aspx. < p > Please provide the required First and Last names and
contact information for the Primary and Secondary Grant Coordinators and the Fiscal Coordinator. If the LEA only has a
Primary Grant Coordinator, please duplicate that information for the Secondary Grant Coordinator.

The LEA Applicant Information is accurate.

* ! The LEA Applicant Information is inaccurate. (Do not submit this application. Please use the "Save and Logoff" button
and contact the School Improvement and Support Office by phone at 916-319-0833 or by email at SISO@cde.ca,gov for
assistance.)

Please provide the required First and Last names and contact information for the Primary and Secondary Grant
Coordinators and the Fiscal Coordinator. If the LEA only has a Primary Grant Coordinator, please duplicate that information
for the Secondary Grant Coordinator.

https:/iwww3.cde.ca.gov/gmart/csileaprintapp.aspx 37



1/7/12021 Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)

Primary Grant Coordinator

First and Last Mark Wilson

Name:

Title: Principal

Phone: 559-500-0914

Ext:

E-mail: Mark wilson@fresnoeoc.org
Fax: 559-237-0956

Secondary Grant Coordinator

First and Last Rena Failia

Name:

Title: Guidance Counselor
Coordinator

Phone: 559-498-8543

Ext:

E-mail: Rena failla@fresnoeoc.org

Fax:

Fiscal Coordinator

Firstand Last  Rebecca Heinricy

Name:

Title: Finance Officer

Phone: 559-349-1053

Ext:

E-mail: Rebecca heinricy@fresnoegc.org
Fax:

Section 4: Narrative Responses

The local educational agency (LEA) must provide complete responses to the four prompts below.
Please note the character limits allowed for each prompt.

The LEA is required to utilize the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and School Plan for Student
Achievement (SPSA) processes for the 2021-22 school year to locally develop and impiement a plan for the school to
improve student outcomes in each school that meets the criteria for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI)
on the 2019 California School Dashboard.

Prompt 1: In the textbox below, describe any separate planning process that the LEA will use. If the LEA will not use
any separate planning process, please type NA for the response. (Max 500 characters)

Response 1:
NA

The LEA is required to utilize the LCAP and SPSA processes to monitor schools identified for CSI.

https://iwww3.cde.ca.gov/gmart/csileaprintapp.aspx

38



1/7/2021

Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)

Prompt 2: In the textbox below, describe any separate monitoring process that the LEA will use. If the LEA will not
use any separate monitoring process, please type NA for the response. (Max 500 characters)

Response 2:
NA

Prompt 3: In the textbox below, describe how CSI funds will be used to support the needs assessment and root
cause analysis process to address the reasons for identification and to ensure that interventions/strategies/activities
align to the goals, actions, and services in the LCAP. (Max 1000 characters)

Response 3:

Root causes for student failure have been identified as lack of motivation; inadequate basic -
educational services; insufficient instructional intervention; and social and emotional issues. An 7
examination of student enroliment over the past three years revealed that nearly 95% of hd
students who enroll at SOUL are credit deficient. Further analysis has revealed SOUL's

For the prompt below, external partners include any external service provider other than the county office of
education and other agencies within the state system of support that the LEA would partner with to develop
and implement the CSl plan.

Prompt 4: In the textbox below, describe the LEA's rigorous review process to recruit, screen, select, and evaluate
any external service provider with whom the LEA will partner. If the LEA will not partner with any external service
provider/s, please type NA for the response. (Max 1000 characters)

Response 4:
NA

Section 5: 2020-21 Comprehensive Support and Improvement Preliminary

Funding Plan

School of Unlimited Learning

$170,283.00

From the local educational agency's (LEA's) preliminary allocation under this grant, the LEA may distribute funds
among the schools that meet the criteria for Comprehensive Support and Improvement on the California School 2019
Dashboard. The total amount of distributed funds must match the LEA's preliminary allocation.

Note: The LEA will be required to adjust its Funding Plan when LEA allocation amounts are revised and determined

to be final.

Instructions: Please use the "Edit" button to input data into the "Amount of Funds Distributed"” fields. Once data has
been entered, use the "Update” button to save the data or the "Cancel" button to cancel the revision.

*** - There are no data in this field

School of

Unlimited $170,283.00
Leamning

Total

Distributed $170,263.00

https://www3.cde.ca.gov/gmart/csileaprintapp.aspx

39



1/7/12021 Initial Application (CSI LEA Grant) - GMART (CA Dept of Education)
Section 6: Signatures

ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS/TERMS/CONDITIONS:

2 As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, | have read all assurances, certifications, terms, and conditions
associated with the 2020-21 Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) Local
Educational Agency (LEA) Application for Funding and CSI program requirements; and | agree to comply with all
requirements as a condition of funding.

| certify that all applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed and that to the best of my knowledge,
the information contained in this application is correct and complete.

SIGNATURE

By signing this application electronically, |, the duly authorized representative of the applicant, agree that my electronic
signature is the legally binding equivalent to my handwritten signature.

LEA Name: School of Unlimited Lez

First and Last Mark A. Wilson

Name:

Title: Principal

Date: 01/07/2021

Email: mark.wilson@fresnoeoc

Phone Number: 559-500-0914

Note: If the LEA wishes to revise its online application after submission, the LEA must resubmit the application prior to the
application due date as specified in the Application and Funding Results Timeline.

The CDE is not able to modify the application information after submission. Incomplete or late applications may delay
funding.

California Department of Education

1430 N Street Web Policy
Sacramento, CA 95814

hitps:/iwww3.cde.ca.govigmart/csileaprintapp.aspx



Fresno
Economic Linda Hayes Board Chair

Opportunities Emilia Reyes Chief Executive Officer
Commission

SCHOOL OF UNLIMITED LEARNING GOVERNING COUNCIL

Date: 02/09/2021 Program: School of Unlimited Learning
Agenda Item #: Vi Director: Mark A. Wilson, Ed.D.
Subject: SOUL 2019/2020 School Officer: Michelle Tutunjian
Accountability Report Card

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends Governing Council ratification of the School of Unlimited Learning'’s
2019/2020 School Accountability Report Card (SARC).

BACKGROUND:

The No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 requires each state to produce an annual report card
that summarizes student assessment results and disaggregated by student subgroup.
Information must also be included on high school graduation rates, teacher qualifications,
other indicators used in each state’s definition. Each year, California public schools,
including charter schools, annually provide information about themselves to the community
allowing the public to evaluate and compare schools for student achievement, environment,
resources and demographics. The SARC contains information about the condition and
performance of each California public school. Every school in California is required by state
law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC), by February 1 of each year.
The SOUL Governing Council did not meet in January 2021. Consequently, this is
presented to the Governing Council as a ratification item.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

CONCLUSION

SOUL’s 2019/2020 School Accountability Report Card was posted on SOUL’s website:
www.fresnoeoc.org/soul.

41

[
“Action

PARTNERSHIP

@ FresnoEOC.org

<, (559) 263-1000 El @ W @rresnoE0C




- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Department ol

EDUCATION

SARC Home » School of Unlimited Learning

2019-2020 School Accountability Report Card

Trmrnalaticnm MNinalaine e

School Accountability Report Card
Reported Using Data from the 2019-2020 School Year

California Department of Education

By February 1 of each year, every school in California is required by state law to publish a School Accountability Report Card (SARC).The
SARC contains information about the condition and performance of each California public school. Under the Local Control Funding Formula
(LCFF) all tocal educational agencies (LEAs) are required to prepare a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), which describes how
they intend to meet annual school-specific goals for all pupils, with specific activities to address state and local priorities. Additionally, data
reported in an LCAP is to be consistent with data reported in the SARC.

¢ For more information about SARC requirements, see the California Department of Education (CDE) SARC web page at
hitps://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/,

¢ For more information about the LCFF or LCAP, see the CDE LCFF web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aallc/.

» For additional information about the school, parents/guardians and community members should contact the school principal or the
district office.

DataQuest

DataQuest is an online data tool located on the CDE DataQuest web page at https://dg.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/ that contains
additional information about this school and comparisons of the school to the district and the county. Specifically, DataQuest is a
dynamic system that provides reports for accountability (e.g., test data, enroliment, high school graduates, dropouts, course
enroliments, staffing, and data regarding English learners).

California School Dashboard

The California School Dashboard (Dashboard) https://www.caschooldashboard.org/ reflects California’s new accountability and continuous
improvement system and provides information about how LEAs and schools are meeting the needs of California’s diverse student
population. The Dashboard contains reports that display the performance of LEAs, schools, and student groups on a set of state and local

42

1of19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education)

20f19

measures to assist in identifying strengths, challenges, and areas in need of improvement.

About This School

Contact Information (School Year 2020-2021)

https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

‘jlstrict Contact information (School Year 2020-2021)

District Name Fresno Unified

Phone Number (559) 457-3000
Superintendent Bob Nelson Ed.D.

Email Address bob.nelson@fresnounified.org
Website hitp:/fwww.fresnounified.org

| School Contact Information (School Year 2020-2021)

School Name School of Unlimited Learning
Street 2336 Calaveras St.

City, State, Zip Fresno, Ca, 93721-1104
Phone Number 659-

Principal Mark A. Wilson, Principal
Email Address mark.wilson@fresnoeoc.org
Website hitp:/Mmww.fresnoeoc.org/soul

County-District-School 10621661030642
(CDS) Code

43

Last updated: 1/19/2021

1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

School Description and Mission Statement (School Year 2020-2021)

The mission of the School of Unlimited Learning Charter High School is to provide comprehensive learning experiences in a
manner and in an environment that enables students to obtain skills, knowledge, and motivation to be self-directed, life-long
learners as they mature toward self-sufficiency. The School of Unlimited Learning (SOUL) presently serves, educates and works
with students residing primarily within the Fresno metropolitan area. The students, ages 14 through 22, and grades 9 through 12,
have not yet received a high school diploma. The targeted youth often, but not necessarily, have a history of low
academicachievement due primarily to truancy due primarily to poor attendance in their previous schools . A review of their
scholastic career typically reveals a failure to benefit from available support services in the traditional school system, and a
possible need for more comprehensive academic and support services.

The School of Unlimited Learning's educational program offers both a classroom-based program and a nonclassroom-based
program. Both programs are located at the EOC Sanctuary Youth Center at 2336 Calaveras Street. SOUL's teaching staff consists
of 11 fuli-time, fully-credentialed teachers with approximately 80 students enrolled in the classroom-based program and 140
enrolled in the independent study program. Students who enroll in the independent study program typically have scheduling
conflicts with traditional school day. These students voluntarily enroll in this alternative instructional program. Students in both
program are assigned a case manager to assist in addressing family, social, and community issues beyond the scope of the
educational program requirements.

Last updated: 1/19/2021
Student Enroliment by Grade Level (School Year 2019-2020)

Grade Level Grade 9 | Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12 Total Enroliment

Number of Students 15 35 53 78 181

44

30f19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

3

Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12

Last updated: 1/19/2021
Student Enroliment by Student Group (School Year 2019-2020)
Student Group Black or African American  American Indian or Alaska Native  Asian Filipino  Hispanic or Latino

Percent of Total Enroliment 7.70% 0.60 % 170% 0.60% 80.10 %

Student Group (Other) i Socioeconomically Disadvantaged  English Learners  Students with Disabilities  Foster Youth  Hon

Percent of Total Enroliment 89.00 % 7.20 % 11.00 % 1.70 % 1.7

State Priority: Basic
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic (Priority 1):

» Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the pupils they are teaching;
» Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and
» School facilities are maintained in good repair

Teacher Credentials
School School School District
Teachers 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2020-2021
With Full Credential 1 1 11
Without Full Credential 0 0 0

45

4 0of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education)

Teachers

Teachers Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence (with full credential)

12

https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

School School School District
2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2020-2021
0 0 0

Teachers with Full Credential
‘Teachers without Full Credential
! Teachers Teaching Outside Subject Area of Competence

0.00 1.00

Teacher Misassignments and Vacant Teacher Positions

Indicator
Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners
Total Teacher Misassignments*

Vacant Teacher Positions

46

50of 19

2,00

Last updated: 1/19/2021

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0

1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education)

6 of 19

1.0
05
N e e —_ e e e
05
-1.0
2018-2019 2019-2020

https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners

Total Teacher Misassignments*

1 Vacant Teacher Posilions

2020-2021

Note: “Misassignments” refers to the number of positions filled by teachers who lack legal authorization to teach that grade level, subject

area, student group, etc.

* Total Teacher Misassignments includes the number of Misassignments of Teachers of English Learners.

School Facility Good Repair Status

Last updated: 1/19/2021

Using the most recently collected Facility Inspection Tool (FIT) data (or equivalent), provide the following:

» Determination of repair status for systems listed

» Description of any needed maintenance to ensure good repair
» The year and month in which the data were collected

» The rate for each system inspected

« The overall rating

Year and month of the most recent FIT report: August 2020
System Inspected
Systems: Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer
Interior: Interior Surfaces
Cleanliness: Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation
Electrical: Electrical

Restrooms/Fountains: Restrooms, Sinks/Fountains

. Safety: Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials

Structural: Structural Damage, Roofs

External: Playground/School Grounds, Windows/Doors/Gates/Fences

47

Rating

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Good

Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned

1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Overall Facility Rate
Year and month of the most recent FIT report: August 2020

Overall Rating Good

Last updated: 1/19/2021

State Priority: Pupil Achievement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement (Priority 4):

» Statewide assessments (i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System, which includes the
Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general education population and the California Alternate Assessments
[CAAs] for English language arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. Only eligible
students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are
linked with the Common Core State Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities); and

* The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of
California and the California State University, or career technical education sequences or programs of study.

CAASPP Test Results in ELA and Mathematics for All Students
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

School School District District State State
Subject 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020
English Language Arts / Literacy (grades 3-8 and 19.0% N/A 38.0% N/A 50% N/A
11)
Mathematics (grades 3-8 and 11) 0.0% N/A 30.0% N/A 39% N/A

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the
requirement for statewide testing for the 2019-2020 school year.

Note: Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy.

Note: ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The "Percent Met or
Exceeded" is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total
number of students who participated in both assessments.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

48

7 of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education)

8of19

CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group

Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020)

Student Group
All Students
Male
Female

Black or African American
American Indian ar Alaska Native
Asian

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
English Learners

Students with Disabilities

Students Receiving Migrant
Education Services

Foster Youth

Homeless

Total
Enroliment

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the
requirement for statewide testing for the 2019—-2020 school year.

Number
Tested

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

49

Percent
Tested

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Percent Not
Tested

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Percent Met or

Exceeded
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Last updated:

1/19/2021

1/19/2021; 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education)

90f 19

CAASPP Test Results in Mathematics by Student Group
Grades Three through Eight and Grade Eleven (School Year 2019-2020)

Student Group
All Students
Male
Female

Black or African American
American Indian or Alaska Native
Asian

Filipino

Hispanic or Latino

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander
White

Two or More Races
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged
English Learners

Students with Disabilities

Students Receiving Migrant
Education Services

Foster Youth

Homeless

Total
Enroliment

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Note: Celis with N/A values do not require data.
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waives the
requirement for statewide testing for the 2019-2020 school year.

Numbe
Tested

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

r

50

Percent
Tested

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Percent Not
Tested

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Percent Met or

Exceeded
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Last updated:

1/19/2021

1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education)

CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students
Grades Five, Eight and High School
Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard

School School
Subject 2018-2019 2019-2020
N/A

i Science (grades 5, 8, and high school) 5

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

District

2018-2019

https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

District State State
2019-2020 2018-2019 2019-2020 |
N/A 30

NA |

‘Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the

requirement for statewide testing for the 2019-2020 school year.

Note: The new California Science Test (CAST) was first administered operationally in the 2018-2019 school year.

CAASPP Tests Results in Science by Student Group
Grades Five, Eight and High School (School Year 2019-2020)

Total Numbe
Student Group Enroliment Tested

All Students N/A N/A
Male N/A N/A
Female N/A N/A
Black or African American N/A N/A
American Indian or Alaska Native N/IA N/A
Asian N/A N/A
Filipino N/A N/A
Hispanic or Latino N/A N/A
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander N/A N/A
White N/A N/A
Two or More Races N/A N/A
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged N/A N/A
English Learners N/A N/A
Students with Disabilities N/A N/A
Students Receiving Migrant N/A N/A
Education Services

Foster Youth N/A N/A
Homeless N/A N/A

10 of 19

r

51

Percent
Tested

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

NIA

NIA

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Last updated: 1/19/2021

Percent Not Percent Met or
Tested Exceeded
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
NIA NIA
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
NIA N/A

1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Note: Cells with N/A values do not require data.

Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-30-20 was issued which waived the
requirement for statewide testing for the 20192020 schaol year.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

52

11 of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

12 of 19

Career Technical Education (CTE) Programs (School Year 2019-2020)

The School of Unlimited Learning offers a variety of career exploration courses, all of which are considered elective courses,
designed to provide students career exploration opportunities. For the past five years, SOUL has contracted with Ideaworks, a
local cooperative, to provide hands-on training in woodworking,ceramics, robotics, 3D printing, and laser cutting. In addition, SOUL
contracts with Quiqlabs, Inc. to provide computer literacy, HTML/website development, and basic coding. SOUL also maintains a
close ongoing partnership with Central California Legal Services to offer a Street Law course which exposes students to careers in
the legal profession. During the 2019/2020 school year, SOUL contracted with the Building Trades to offer an Introduction to
Apprenticeship in Building Trades. The course utilized the Multicraft Core Curriculum (MC3), delivered by a Building Trades
professional to provide students an introduction to apprenticeship programs in the building trades. The course included multiple
field trips to building sites and apprenticeship training facilities. Through Fresno EOC, SOUL offers a Youth Mentor
program/internship, which prepares students for post-secondary certification in Early Childhood Education. In SOUL's Career
Exploration course, offered primarily to 12th graders, students complete career assessments, prepare resumes, and learn
interviewing techniques to secure employment. SOUL provides eligible seniors paid work experience opportunities through Fresno
EOC’s Employment and Training Program. The paid work experience is aligned to the students’ career goals. During the
2018/2019 school year, SOUL initiated a Culinary Arts program, which includes food handler certification. Measurable outcomes
for all of the career courses are the successful completion of specific projects. Unfortunately, due to the school site closure as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, all career exploration courses were curtailed, and will resume during the 2021/2022 school year.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation (School Year 2019-2020)

CTE Program

Measure Participation
Number of Pupils Participating in CTE 50
Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a High School Diploma 60.00%
Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated Between the School and Institutions of 20.00%

Postsecondary Education

Last updated: 1/19/2021

53

1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Courses for University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU) Admission

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent
2019-2020 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 99.44%
2018-2019 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 0.00%

Last updated: 1/19/2021

State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil Qutcomes (Priority 8):

* Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education

California Physical Fitness Test Results (School Year 2019-2020)

Grade Percentage of Students Meeting Percentage of Students Meeting Percentage of Students Meeting Six
Level Four of Six Fitness Standards Five of Six Fitness Standards of Six Fitness Standards
9 N/A N/A NIA

Note: Calls with N/A values do not require data.
Note: The 2019-2020 data are not available. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Executive Order N-56-20 was issued which waived the
requirement to administer the physical fitness performance test for the 2019-2020 school year.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

State Priority: Parental Involvement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental Involvement (Priority 3):

» Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and each school site

Opportunities for Parental Involvement (School Year 2020-2021)

Parent involvement is essential to student success. Parents/guardians are encouraged to participate in the education of their child
through a variety of avenues. Parents are kept abreast of school activities, events, and the educational progress of their child. The
student’s case manager, teachers, school administration, and counseling staff contact parents directly by phone, mail, email,
and/or personal home visits. For each student, an individual parent/student orientation is provided by a case manager upon
enrolling in school. Communication between the school and home is regular and meaningful, thus providing a foundation of trust
and collaboration. As parents and educators successfully correspond, problems will be more readily resolved and students will
make greater academic progress. Parents are encouraged to participate actively in selecting placement options with their child.
Regular attendance, providing basic clothing and supplies, assisting with homework and taking a personal interest in the academic
advancement, as well as the emotional and social growth of their child are strongly encouraged. Parents contribute to decisions
benefitting the school environment and student instruction through a variety of means, including representation on the Governing
Council and attendance at regularly scheduled parent meetings. The annual Parent Involvement Policy is updated each year.

With the school site closure on March 16, 2021, SOUL immediately implemented a parent communication network. Engaging in

outreach through phone calls, surveys, and virtual meetings with stakeholders provided staff valuable input to guide our school's

planning and development for the 2020/2021 school year and resulted in a high success rate of students who were required to

complete the 2019/2020 school year In a remote learning environment. All parents were contacted by SOUL staff on a weekly

basis to monitor student progress, provide support for student learning, and determine needed resources for online learning. As a
54

13 of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

result of tremendous parent input, SOUL was able to determine the need for additional investment of online curriculum, devices
and wireless hotspots to ensure that all students had full access to remote instruction. Parent training was provided though online
meetings.

Last updated: 1/19/2021
State Priority: Pupil Engagement
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Engagement (Priority 5):

» High schoo! dropout rates; and
» High school graduation rates

Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate)

School School School District District District State State State
Indicator  2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019

Dropout 26.50% 46.80% 22.70% 11.10% 9.10% 10.30% 9.10% 9.60% 9.00%
Rate

Graduation 43.40% 35.50% 37.90% 82.00% 84.30% 84.20% 82.70% 83.00% 84.50%
Rate

Dropout/Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) Chart

Dropout Rate

{Graduation Rate
45

40

35

25

20
2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019

Last updated: 1/19/2021
State Priority: School Climate
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School Climate (Priority 6):

» Pupil suspension rates;
¢ Pupil expulsion rates; and
» Other local measures on the sense of safety

55

14 of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Suspensions and Expulsions
(data collected between July through June, each full school year respectively)

Rate Suspensions  Expulsions
School 5.60% 0.00%
2017-2018
5.80% 0.00%
School
2018-2019 7.10% 0.20%
District 7.10% 0.20%
2017-2018
3.50% 0.10%
District
2018-2019 3.50% 0.10%
State
2017-2018

Suspensions and Expulsions for School Year 2019—2020 Only
State (data collected between July through February, partial school year due to the COVID-19 pandemic)

Rate Suspensions , Expulsions

School 4.10% 0.00%
2019-2020

District
2019-2020 - --

State
2019-2020

Note: The 2019-2020 suspensions and expulsions rate data are not comparable to prior year data because the 2019-2020 school year is a
partial school year due to the COVID-19 crisis. As such, it would be inappropriate to make any comparisons in rates of suspensions and
expulsions in the 2019-2020 school year compared to prior years.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

School Safety Plan (School Year 2020—-2021)

Each year, SOUL develops a comprehensive Safe school and Disaster Preparedness Plan in conjunction with Fresno Unified
School District . The comprehensive school safety plan is revised on an annual basis each Spring and reviewed with school staff
at the beginning of each school year. The 2020/2021 Safe School Plan was approved by the SOUL Governing Council in February
2020. It included the following

* Threat Assessment Management Team

* Immediate Care Responders

* Pandemic Influenza Management Plan

« Parent Reunification Plan

« Evacuation Plan

» Fire Drill, Lockdown, and Imminent Danger Procedures and Schedule

* Employee Phone Tree

56

150f 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Due to COVID 19, the school safety plan was adapted to include all pandemic-related safety protocols outlined in the school's
Reintegration Plan, which include the following:

* All staff and students will continue to be required to wear masks and maintain a safe distance while on campus and in classes.
All staff are required to complete the online COVID screening at the beginning and end of each work day. Students have their
temperatures taken prior to entering the building. Hand sanitizing dispensers are installed and available throughout the building. All
student and staff interactions are carried out at least six feet apart, with masks and behind Plexiglas shields.

* Plexiglas shields are installed in the front reception area, all offices, classrooms, conference rooms, and in the teacher work
room. Teachers do not share work space. Additional desks or work stations have been installed to ensure that all teachers have
their individual workspace. Students are assigned their own desks, textbooks, and laptops to avoid cross contamination.

* The entire facility is sanitized at the end of each day. All students have been issued their own laptops and routers for home use.
Student laptops are sanitized if and when they are retumed. Staff sanitize student desks at the end of each in-person meeting.

» Designated staff is assigned to oversee daily temperature scanning. In most cases, the teacher meets the student at the main
entrance to conduct the temperature scanning.

Last updated: 1/19/2021
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the

state priorities for LCFF.

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) (Schoo! Year 2017-2018)

Subject English Mathematics Science Social Science
Average Class Size 7.00 9.00 i 8.00 9.00
Number of Classes * 27 16 12 17
1-22

Number of Classes *

23-32
* Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per

Number of Classes * classroom). At the secondary school level, this information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

33+

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) (School Year 2018-2019)

Subject
Average Class Size

Number of Classes *
1-22

57

16 of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



~ School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

Number of Classes * = English Mathematics Science = Social Science

23-32
7.00 8.00 9.00 10.00
Number of Classges *
33+ 23 17 12 15

* Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary
school level, this information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution (Secondary) (School Year 2019-2020)

Subject English Mathematics Science = Social Science
Average Class Size 9.00 10.00 12.00 11.00
Number of Clagses * 24 16 9 13
1-22
1 1
Number of Classes * 0 0
23-32 0 0

Number of Classes *
33+

* Number of classes indicates how many classrooms fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary
school level, this information is reported by subject area rather than grade level.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor (School Year 2019-2020)

Title Ratlo
Pupils to Academic Counselor* 90.5

*Qne full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work
50 percent of full time.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

Student Support Services Staff (School Year 2019-2020)

Number of FTE* Assigned to School
Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 2.00
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)

Psychologist
58

17 of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

18 of 19

Number of FTE* Assigned to School
Social Worker
Nurse
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)

Other

*One full time equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work
50 percent of full time.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

Types of Services Funded (Fiscal Year 2019—-2020)

School data have revealed a strong correlation between student connectedness and positive attendance and behavior.
Notwithstanding recent gains in student participation in extracurricular activities and community service projects, SOUL continues
to struggle with lower than average ADA to enroliment, as well as a higher than average number of student suspensions. SOUL
will collect, analyze, and evaluate student discipline and attendance data on an annual basis and make recommendations for
program changes to improve attendance and decrease suspensions. The majority of SOUL students are considered high-risk of
dropping out of school due to past histary of truancy and poor academic achievement. In order to help students become
successful academic learners, it is essential to help them remove non-academic barriers, such as depression, gang affiliation,
substance abuse, domestic violence issues, and other family dysfunctions.

SOUL provides greater flexibility in scheduling of classes to increase student attendance and academic performance through
blended learning model to more highly engage students in learning and, as a result, decrease student misbehavior. in the
2018/2019 school year SOUL continued to seek ways to expand course offerings to increase student interest and learning. SOUL
continued to offer an afternoon block scheduling format for the 2019/2020 school year to encourage a higher level of engagement
for all classroom-based students. The 2019/2020 block schedule included specific skills labs designated for independent study
students (primarily English learners) or who are skill deficient in math and reading. The block scheduling format allowed more
students to participate in career oriented activities. SOUL assigns Case Managers to all students, grades 9- 12 to provide
resources that assist students in removing barriers) to attendance and academic success.

To address transportation barriers, SOUL provides bus tokens to each student, which will reduce non-attendance. To increase
student engagement and career preparedness, among SOUL students, SOUL will expand its CTE course offerings during the
2019/2020 school year. SOUL provides student incentives to promote attendance and student achievements. Students are
recognized throughout the year for their academic achievements, attendance participation and community service. SOUL provides
weekly Success for Life training to its students, focusing on mindfulness, emotional intelligence, and taking responsibility for one's
actions.

SOUL utilizes the resources of its parent agency, Fresno Economic Opportunities Commission, to provide SOUL students and
their families free access to many EOC programmatic resources, including Early Head Start, Head Start, W IC, Health Services,
Low Income Housing Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), Sanctuary Youth Shelter, Transitional Living Centers, Employment
and Training, Local Conservation Corps, and the Valley Apprenticeship Academy.

The COVID-19 pandemic has drastically altered the lives of our students, families, and staff. The unexpected closure of schools in
March 2020 has impacted the physical, emotional, sacial, and educational needs of our students and caused high levels of stress
and trauma to them and their families. The closure of schools has impacted many students and families by challenging their ability
to access, not just education, but all basic services as well. The pandemic has impacted SOUL families through widespread
unemployment and increased existing challenges such as food insecurity and access to technology/connectivity. Families and

59

1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



- School Accountability Report Card (CA Dept of Education) https://www.sarconline.org/Sarc/Print/10621661030642

students have also been adversely affected by the physical separation from supports and services that are typically provided in-
person at SOUL, such as personal and emotional health counseling, case management services, immediate referrals to services
provided by Fresno EOC programs and community resources. Increased cases of depression have also been experienced by
SQUL students due to the physical and social separation from the classroom and school community. Whereas 70% of SOUL
students learn through independent study, daily contact with SOUL classroom-based students has been disrupted. In March 2020,
SOUL staff incorporated Ring Central to hold individual and small group online meetings with their students. Each SOUL staff
member was provided an account, including support staff whose primary job was to work with teachers, students, and parents to
ensure that parents were receiving the communication and support they needed in these uncertain times. All students were issued
a laptop and wireless hotspot (if needed) so ensure connectivity. Meetings were followed up by weekly phones from teachers and
support staff to both students and parents. Students were assigned work to do at home under the supervision of their teachers.
Every two weeks under the strictest protocols, the students dropped off work and received additional; work. SOUL's immediate
response to the pandemic during the last three months of the 2019/2020 school year resulted in the largest graduating class in
SOUL's 22-year history. SOUL will continue to align instructional decision-making to the directives of public health experts at the
local, county, and state levels.

Last updated: 1/19/2021

Professional Development
Professional Development Days include five full days and 15 partial days per year
Measure 2018-2019  2019-2020 2020-2021

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 20 20 20

Questlons: SARC TEAM | sarciicde.ca.goy | 916-319-0406

60

- 19 0of 19 1/19/2021, 10:37 AM



SOUL Governing Council Principal's Report February 9, 2020

9 10 11 12 TOTALS
Enrollment By Grade 8 30 51 59 148
Male Female Total
Enrollment by Gender 64 84 148
Enroliment by Ethnicity %
Hispanic 123 83.1%
African American 11 7.4%
Asian 4 2.7%
White 8 5.4%
Middle Eastern 1 0.7%
American Indian 1 0.7%
Total 148 100%
Special Populations
Teen Parent 11 7.4%
Special Needs 12 8.1%
English Learners 10 6.8%
Homeless 13 8.8%
Foster/Group Home 3 2.0%

Updates
Fall Semester Summary
Support Services for Parents and Students
COVID Testing and Vaccinations
WASC Notification Letter
Interact/Leadership - Larry Metzler
Preparing our Seniors for Post Secondary
Planning for 2021-2022
Local Control and Accountability Plan Process
61



